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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). [ ]
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There were 545,700,563 shares of Registrant's common stock ($.01 par value) outstanding on November 1, 2014.
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GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND TERMS
The following listing provides a comprehensive reference of common acronyms and terms used throughout the
document:
AFS Available For Sale
ALLL Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
AOCI Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
ATM Automatic Teller Machine
BHC Bank Holding Company
bps Basis Points
C&I Commercial and Industrial
Capital Plan Rule Federal Reserve’s Regulation Y Capital Plan Rule
CBNA Citizens Bank, National Association
CBPA Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania
CCAR Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review
CCO Chief Credit Officer
CEO Chief Executive Officer
Citizens or CFG or the Company Citizens Financial Group, Inc. and its Subsidiaries
CLTV Combined Loan-to-Value
CMO Collateralized Mortgage Obligation
CRE Commercial Real Estate
CRO Chief Risk Officer
CSA Credit Support Annex
DFAST Dodd-Frank Act Stress Test
Dodd-Frank Act (DFA) The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010
EPS Earnings Per Share
ESPP Employee Stock Purchase Program
ERISA Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

Fannie Mae (FNMA)
The Federal National Mortgage Association

FASB The Financial Accounting Standards Board
FDIC Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
FDICIA Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991
FHC Financial Holding Company
FHLB Federal Home Loan Bank
FICO Fair Isaac Corporation (credit rating)
FRB Federal Reserve Bank
FRBG Federal Reserve Board of Governors
Freddie Mac (FHLMC) The Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
FTP Funds Transfer Pricing
GAAP Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
GDP Gross Domestic Product
Ginnie Mae (GNMA) The Government National Mortgage Association
GRG Global Recovery Group
HELOC Home Equity Line of Credit
HTM Held To Maturity
ILP Incurred Loss Period
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IPO Initial Public Offering
IST Integrated Stress Testing
IT Information Technology
LCR Liquidity Coverage Ratio
LGD Loss Given Default
LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate
LOB Line of Business
LTV Loan-to-Value
MBS Mortgage-Backed Securities

MD&A Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

MSR Mortgage Servicing Right
NSFR Net Stable Funding Ratio
OCC Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
OCI Other Comprehensive Income
OIS Overnight Index Swap
PD Probability of Default
peers or peer banks or peer
regional banks

BB&T, Comerica, Fifth Third, KeyCorp. M&T, PNC, Regions, SunTrust and
U.S. Bancorp

RBS The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
RBS CBFM The Royal Bank of Scotland plc Corporate Banking and Financial Markets
RBS Group The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc and its subsidiaries
RBSG The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc
ROTCE Return on Tangible Common Equity
RPA Risk Participation Agreement
SBO Serviced by Others loan portfolio
SVaR Stress Value-at-Risk
TDR Troubled Debt Restructuring
VaR Value-at-Risk

2
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED)

(in millions, except share data) September
30, 2014

December
31, 2013

ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks $993 $1,406
Interest-bearing cash and due from banks 1,896 1,351
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 292 233
Securities available for sale, at fair value 18,666 15,995
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $5,278 and $4,257, respectively) 5,289 4,315
Other investment securities 893 935
Loans held for sale, at fair value 205 176
Other loans held for sale 3 1,078
Loans and leases 90,749 85,859
Less: Allowance for loan and lease losses 1,201 1,221
Net loans and leases 89,548 84,638
Derivative assets 547 650
Premises and equipment, net 541 592
Bank-owned life insurance 1,370 1,339
Goodwill 6,876 6,876
Due from broker 2,067 446
Other branch assets held for sale — 46
Other assets (related party balances of $8 and $63, respectively) 2,155 2,078
TOTAL ASSETS $131,341 $122,154
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
LIABILITIES:
Deposits:
      Noninterest-bearing $25,877 $24,931
      Interest-bearing (related party balances of $5 and $5, respectively) 67,586 61,972
          Total deposits 93,463 86,903
Deposits held for sale — 5,277
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 5,184 4,791
Other short-term borrowed funds 6,715 2,251
Derivative liabilities (related party balances of $485 and $835, respectively) 638 939
Deferred taxes, net 354 199
Long-term borrowed funds (related party balances of $1,666 and $1,000, respectively) 2,062 1,405
Due to broker 2,087 —
Other liabilities (related party balances of $42 and $27, respectively) 1,455 1,193
TOTAL LIABILITIES $111,958 $102,958
Contingencies (refer to Note 12)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock:
$25.00 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, no shares outstanding at September 30,
2014 and $1.00 par value, 30,000 shares authorized, no shares outstanding at December 31,
2013

$— $—

Common stock:
6 6
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$.01 par value, 1,000,000,000 shares authorized, 559,998,324 shares issued and outstanding
at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013
Additional paid-in capital 18,660 18,603
Retained earnings 1,152 1,235
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (435 ) (648 )
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $19,383 $19,196
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $131,341 $122,154
The accompanying Notes to unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these
statements.

3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

 (in millions, except share data) 2014 2013 2014 2013
INTEREST INCOME:
Interest and fees on loans and leases (related party balances of $18,
$17, $54 and $38, respectively) $754 $748 $2,235 $2,258

Interest and fees on loans held for sale 2 3 4 10
Interest and fees on other loans held for sale — — 22 —
Investment securities 155 120 458 348
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 2 2 4 9
Total interest income 913 873 2,723 2,625
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Deposits (related party balances of $0, $12, $0 and $15, respectively)41 58 108 176
Deposits held for sale — — 4 —
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreement to
repurchase (related party balances of $3, $33, $16 and $143,
respectively)

9 35 25 150

Other short-term borrowed funds (related party balances of $16, $3,
$60 and $3, respectively) 21 2 70 4

Long-term borrowed funds (related party balances of $17, $4, $42
and $6, respectively) 22 8 55 16

Total interest expense 93 103 262 346
Net interest income 820 770 2,461 2,279
Provision for credit losses 77 145 247 347
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 743 625 2,214 1,932
NONINTEREST INCOME:
Service charges and fees (related party balances of $1, $4, $4 and
$13, respectively) 144 163 430 488

Card fees 58 63 175 176
Trust and investment services fees 39 39 120 109
Foreign exchange and trade finance fees (related party balances of
$59, ($33), $52 and ($20), respectively) 26 25 70 73

Capital markets fees (related party balances of $4, $4, $9 and $9,
respectively) 22 11 66 35

Mortgage banking fees 21 20 55 133
Bank-owned life insurance income 13 12 36 37
Securities gains, net 2 25 27 119
Other-than-temporary impairment:
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses (3 )(1 ) (42 )(61 )
Portions of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (before
taxes) 2 (2 ) 35 54

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings (1 )(3 ) (7 )(7 )
Other income (related party balances of $5, ($44), ($130) and $132,
respectively) 17 28 367 90

Total noninterest income 341 383 1,339 1,253
NONINTEREST EXPENSE:
Salaries and employee benefits 409 403 1,281 1,261
Outside services 106 87 314 259
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Occupancy (related party balances of $0, $1, $0 and $3, respectively)77 80 245 244
Equipment expense 58 69 187 207
Amortization of software 38 26 102 71
Goodwill impairment — — — 4,435
Other operating expense 122 123 439 384
Total noninterest expense 810 788 2,568 6,861
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 274 220 985 (3,676 )
Income tax expense (benefit) 85 76 317 (98 )
NET INCOME (LOSS) $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding:
Basic 559,998,324559,998,324559,998,324559,998,324
Diluted 560,243,747559,998,324560,081,031559,998,324
Per common share information:
Basic earnings (loss) $0.34 $0.26 $1.19 ($6.39 )
Diluted earnings (loss) 0.34 0.26 1.19 (6.39 )
   Dividends declared and paid to parent 0.68 0.68 1.34 1.45
The accompanying Notes to unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these
statements.

4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income (loss) $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized derivative instrument gains (losses) arising during
the periods, net of income taxes of $10, $1, $80 and ($70),
respectively

17 1 137 (121 )

Reclassification adjustment for net derivative losses included in net
income, net of income taxes of $2, $11, $9 and $45, respectively 3 19 16 79

Net unrealized securities gains (losses) arising during the periods,
net of income taxes of ($36), $19, $73 and ($107), respectively (61 ) 35 127 (184 )

Other-than-temporary impairment not recognized in earnings on
securities, net of income taxes of $0, $0, ($12) and ($21),
respectively

(1 )— (22 ) (35 )

Reclassification of net securities gains to net income, net of income
taxes of $0, ($7), ($7) and ($41), respectively (1 ) (15 ) (13 ) (71 )

Defined benefit pension plans:
Actuarial loss, net of taxes of ($35), $0, ($35) and $0, respectively (59 )— (59 )—
Net prior service credit, net of income taxes of $3, $0, $3 and $0,
respectively 4 — 4 —

Amortization of actuarial loss, net of taxes of $1, $1, $2 and $4,
respectively 2 2 4 5

Divestitures effective 9/1/14, net of taxes of $13, $0, $13 and $0,
respectively 19 — 19 —

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes (77 ) 42 213 (327 )
Total comprehensive income (loss) $112 $186 $881 ($3,905 )
The accompanying Notes to unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these
statements.

5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

(in millions) Preferred
Stock

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total

Balance at December 31, 2012 $— $6 $18,589 $5,846 ($312 ) $24,129
Dividend to parent — — — (145 )— (145 )
Dividends to parent — exchange
transactions — — — (666 )— (666 )

Total comprehensive loss:
Net loss — — — (3,578 )— (3,578 )
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (327 ) (327 )
Total comprehensive loss — — — (3,578 ) (327 ) (3,905 )
Balance at September 30, 2013 $— $6 $18,589 $1,457 ($639 ) $19,413

Balance at December 31, 2013 $— $6 $18,603 $1,235 ($648 ) $19,196
Dividend to parent — — — (85 )— (85 )
Dividends to parent — exchange
transactions — — — (666 )— (666 )

Share-based compensation plans — — 57 — — 57
Total comprehensive income:
Net income — — — 668 — 668
Other comprehensive income — — — — 213 213
Total comprehensive income — — — 668 213 881
Balance at September 30, 2014 $— $6 $18,660 $1,152 ($435 ) $19,383
The accompanying Notes to unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $668 ($3,578 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for credit losses 247 347
Originations of mortgage loans held for sale (1,131 ) (3,310 )
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale 1,089 3,649
Amortization of terminated cash flow hedges (related party balances of $13 and $53,
respectively) 36 57

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 313 304
Recovery of mortgage servicing rights (8 ) (42 )
Securities impairment 7 7
Goodwill impairment — 4,435
Deferred income taxes 31 (110 )
Share-based compensation 29 24
Loss on disposal/impairment of premises and equipment 18 15
Loss on sale of other branch assets held for sale 9 —
Gain on sales of:
Securities available for sale (27 ) (119 )
Other loans held for sale (11 )—
Deposits held for sale (286 )—
(Increase) decrease in other assets (related party balances of $53 and $1, respectively) (2,040 ) 530
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (related party balances of ($151) and $23,
respectively) 2,256 (573 )

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,200 1,636
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment securities:
Purchases of securities available for sale (5,642 ) (8,830 )
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of securities available for sale 2,238 3,931
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 1,265 3,014
Purchases of other investment securities (72 ) (1 )
Proceeds from sales of other investment securities 114 101
Purchases of securities held to maturity (1,174 )—
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of securities held to maturity 216 —
Net (increase) decrease in interest-bearing deposits in banks (59 ) 990
Net (increase) decrease in loans and leases (4,120 ) 1,289
Net increase in bank-owned life insurance (31 ) (29 )
Premises and equipment:
Purchases (48 ) (118 )
Proceeds from sales 29 —
Capitalization of software (116 ) (129 )
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (7,400 ) 218
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 1,569 (1,218 )

393 (742 )
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Net increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements
to repurchase
Net increase in other short-term borrowed funds 4,462 64
Proceeds from issuance of long-term borrowed funds (related party balances of $666
and $666, respectively) 666 666

Repayments of long-term borrowed funds (related party balances of $0 and $280,
respectively) (7 ) (294 )

Dividends declared and paid to parent (751 ) (811 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 6,332 (2,335 )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 132 (481 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,757 3,063
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $2,889 $2,582
Supplemental disclosures:
Interest paid $248 $354
Income taxes paid 201 19
Non-cash items:
Due from broker for securities sold but not settled $1,621 $4
Due to broker for securities purchased but not settled (2,110 ) (2 )

The accompanying Notes to unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these
statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Basis of Presentation

The unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements, including the Notes thereto of Citizens Financial Group,
Inc. (formerly RBS Citizens Financial Group, Inc., prior to April 16, 2014), have been prepared in accordance with
GAAP interim reporting requirements, and therefore do not include all information and Notes included in the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP. These interim Consolidated Financial Statements and
Notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying Notes included in the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, declared effective by the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission on September 23, 2014 (the "Registration Statement"). The
Company is a majority-owned subsidiary of The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc. The Company’s principal business
activity is banking, conducted through its subsidiaries, Citizens Bank, N.A. (formerly RBS Citizens, N.A., prior to
April 16, 2014) and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania.

The unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim periods. The results for interim periods are
not necessarily indicative of results for a full year.

On August 22, 2014, the Company's Board of Directors declared a 165,582-for-1 stock split. Except for the amount of
authorized shares and par value, all references to share and per share amounts in the unaudited interim Consolidated
Financial Statements and accompanying Notes have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock split.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation. These reclassifications
are immaterial and have no effect on net income, total comprehensive income, total assets or total stockholders’ equity
as previously reported.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-15, “Disclosure of Uncertainties about an
Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern.” The new standard provides guidance on determining when and how
to disclose going-concern uncertainties in the financial statements. The new standard requires management to perform
interim and annual assessments of an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year of the date the
financial statements are issued. An entity must provide certain disclosures if “conditions or events raise substantial
doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.” The amendment is effective for annual periods ending
after December 15, 2016, and interim periods thereafter, with early adoption permitted and is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-14, “Classification of Certain
Government-Guaranteed Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure.” This update amends the guidance in Accounting
Standards Codification 310 and requires that a mortgage loan be derecognized and that a separate other receivable be
recognized upon foreclosure if the following conditions are met: (1) The loan has a government guarantee that is not
separable from the loan before foreclosure; (2) At the time of foreclosure, the creditor has the intent to convey the real
estate property to the guarantor and make a claim on the guarantee, and the creditor has the ability to recover under
that claim; and (3) At the time of foreclosure, any amount of the claim that is determined on the basis of the fair value
of the real estate is fixed. Upon foreclosure, the separate other receivable should be measured based on the amount of
the loan balance (principal and interest) expected to be recovered from the guarantor. The amendment is effective for
annual reporting periods, including interim reporting periods within those periods, beginning after December 15, 2014
and is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-13, “Measuring the Financial Assets and the
Financial Liabilities of a Consolidated Collateralized Financing Entity.” This update amends the guidance in
Accounting Standards Codification 820 and clarifies that a reporting entity that consolidates a collateralized financing
entity within the scope of this update may elect to measure the financial assets and the financial liabilities of that
collateralized financing entity using either the measurement alternative included in this update or Topic 820 on fair
value measurement. When the measurement alternative is not elected for a consolidated collateralized financing entity
within the scope of this update, the amendments clarify that (1) the fair value of the financial assets and the fair value
of the financial liabilities of the consolidated collateralized financing entity should be measured using the
requirements of Topic 820 and (2) any differences in the fair value of the financial assets and the fair value of the
financial liabilities of that consolidated collateralized financing entity should be reflected in earnings and attributed to
the reporting entity in the consolidated statement of income (loss). The amendment is effective for annual reporting
periods,

8

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

15



including interim reporting periods within those periods, beginning after December 15, 2015 and is not expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-12, “Accounting for Share-Based Payments
When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service
Period.” This update amends the guidance on stock compensation and clarifies that entities should treat performance
targets that can be met after the requisite service period of a share-based payment award as performance conditions
that affect vesting. Accordingly, an entity should not record compensation expense (measured as of the grant date
without taking into account the effect of the performance target) related to an award for which a transfer to the
employee is contingent on the entity’s satisfaction of a performance target until it becomes probable that the
performance target will be met. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods, including interim reporting
periods within those periods, beginning after December 15, 2015, and is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-11, “Repurchase-to-Maturity Transactions,
Repurchase Financings, and Disclosures,” which makes limited amendments to the guidance on accounting for certain
repurchase agreements. This update requires entities to account for repurchase-to maturity transactions as secured
borrowings (rather than as sales with forward repurchase agreements); eliminates accounting guidance on linked
repurchase financing transactions; and expands disclosure requirements related to certain transfers of financial assets
that are accounted for as sales and certain transfers accounted for as secured borrowings. This update also amends the
existing guidance to clarify that repos and securities lending transactions that do not meet all of the de-recognition
criteria in the existing guidance should be accounted for as secured borrowings. This amendment is effective for
annual reporting periods, including interim reporting periods within those periods, beginning after December 15,
2014, and is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s unaudited interim Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, “Revenue From Contracts With Customers.”
This amendment outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific
guidance. The core principle of the revenue model is that “an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.” The new guidance applies to all contracts with customers except
those that are within the scope of other topics in GAAP. This amendment is effective for annual reporting periods,
including interim reporting periods within those periods, beginning after December 15, 2016, and is not expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-08, “Reporting Discontinued Operations and
Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity.” This amendment modifies the requirements for reporting a
discontinued operation. The amended definition of “discontinued operations” includes only disposals, held-for-sale
classifications of components, or groups of components of an entity that represent “strategic shift” that either has or will
have a major effect on the entity’s operations and financial results, such as geographic area, line of business, equity
method investment or other parts of an entity. This amendment also provides disclosure guidance for situations where
an entity has continuing involvement with a discontinued operation or retains an equity method investment in a
component after disposal. This amendment is effective for all disposals or classifications as held for sale (including
businesses or nonprofit activities that, on acquisition, are classified as held for sale) that occur in annual periods, and
in interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2014, and is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-04, “Reclassification of Residential Real
Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure.” This amendment clarifies that an in-substance
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repossession or foreclosure occurs, and a creditor is considered to have received physical possession of residential real
estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, upon either (1) the creditor obtaining legal title to the
residential real estate property upon completion of a foreclosure or (2) the borrower conveying all interest in the
residential real estate property to the creditor to satisfy that loan through completion of a deed in lieu of foreclosure or
through a similar legal agreement. The amendment requires disclosure of both (1) the amount of foreclosed residential
real estate property held by the creditor and (2) the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans collateralized by
residential real estate property that are in the process of foreclosure according to local requirements of the applicable
jurisdiction. This amendment is effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods,
beginning after December 15, 2014, and is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s unaudited interim
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-01, “Accounting for Investments in
Qualified Affordable Housing Projects.” This amendment permits reporting entities to make an accounting policy
election to account for

9
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their investments in qualified affordable housing projects using the proportional amortization method if certain
conditions are met. Under the proportional amortization method, an entity amortizes the initial cost of the investment
in proportion to the tax credits and other tax benefits received and recognizes the net investment performance in the
income statement as a component of income tax expense (benefit). Qualified affordable housing project investments
that are not accounted for using the proportional amortization method must be accounted for as an equity method or
cost method investment. This amendment is effective for annual periods and interim reporting periods within those
annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2014, and is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

NOTE 2 - SECURITIES
The following table provides the major components of securities at amortized cost and fair value:

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions) Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Securities Available for Sale
U.S. Treasury $15 $— $— $15 $15 $— $— $15
State and political subdivisions 10 — — 10 11 — (1 ) 10
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies and U.S.
government sponsored entities 17,759 207 (68 ) 17,898 14,970 151 (128 ) 14,993

Other/non-agency 747 6 (35 ) 718 992 5 (45 ) 952
Total mortgage-backed securities 18,506 213 (103 ) 18,616 15,962 156 (173 ) 15,945
Total debt securities available for
sale 18,531 213 (103 ) 18,641 15,988 156 (174 ) 15,970

Marketable equity securities 10 3 — 13 10 3 — 13
Other equity securities 12 — — 12 12 — — 12
Total equity securities available
for sale 22 3 — 25 22 3 — 25

Total securities available for sale $18,553 $216 ($103 ) $18,666 $16,010 $159 ($174 ) $15,995
Securities Held to Maturity
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies and U.S.
government sponsored entities $3,833 $9 ($46 ) $3,796 $2,940 $— ($33 ) $2,907

Other/non-agency 1,456 26 — 1,482 1,375 — (25 ) 1,350
Total securities held to maturity $5,289 $35 ($46 ) $5,278 $4,315 $— ($58 ) $4,257
Other Investment Securities
Federal Reserve Bank stock $470 $— $— $470 $462 $— $— $462
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 417 — — 417 468 — — 468
Venture capital and other
investments 6 — — 6 5 — — 5

Total other investment securities $893 $— $— $893 $935 $— $— $935
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The Company has reviewed its securities portfolio for other-than-temporary impairments. The following tables
summarize those securities whose fair values are below carrying values, segregated by those that have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position for less than twelve months and those that have been in a continuous unrealized
loss position for twelve months or longer:

September 30, 2014
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

(dollars in millions) Numberof Issues
Fair
Value

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Number
of Issues

Fair
Value

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Number
of Issues

Fair
Value

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

U.S. Treasury — $— $— — $— $— — $— $—
State and political
subdivisions — — — 1 10 — 1 10 —

Mortgage-backed
securities:
Federal agencies
and U.S.
government
sponsored entities

121 7,178 (63 ) 45 1,213 (51 ) 166 8,391 (114 )

Other/non-agency 5 112 (1 ) 17 414 (34 ) 22 526 (35 )
Total
mortgage-backed
securities

126 7,290 (64 ) 62 1,627 (85 ) 188 8,917 (149 )

Total 126 $7,290 ($64 ) 63 $1,637 ($85 ) 189 $8,927 ($149 )

December 31, 2013
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

(dollars in millions) Numberof Issues
Fair
Value

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Number
of Issues

Fair
Value

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Number
of Issues

Fair
Value

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

State and political
subdivisions 1 $10 ($1 ) — $— $— 1 $10 ($1 )

Mortgage-backed
securities:
Federal agencies
and U.S.
government
sponsored entities

263 12,067 (158 ) 7 20 (2 ) 270 12,087 (160 )

Other/non-agency 22 1,452 (34 ) 19 490 (37 ) 41 1,942 (71 )
Total
mortgage-backed
securities

285 13,519 (192 ) 26 510 (39 ) 311 14,029 (231 )

Total 286 $13,529 ($193 ) 26 $510 ($39 ) 312 $14,039 ($232 )

For each debt security identified with an unrealized loss, the Company reviews the expected cash flows to determine if
the impairment in value is temporary or other-than-temporary. If the Company has determined that the present value
of the debt security’s expected cash flows is less than its amortized cost basis, an other-than-temporary impairment is
deemed to have occurred. The amount of impairment loss that is recognized in current period earnings is dependent on
the Company’s intent to sell (or not sell) the debt security.
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If the Company intends to sell the impaired debt security, the impairment loss recognized in current period earnings
equals the difference between the debt security’s fair value and its amortized cost. If the Company does not intend to
sell the impaired debt security, and it is not likely that the Company will be required to sell the impaired security, the
credit-related impairment loss is recognized in current period earnings and equals the difference between the
amortized cost of the debt security and the present value of the expected cash flows that have currently been projected.
In addition to these cash flow projections, several other characteristics of each debt security are reviewed when
determining whether a credit loss exists and the period over which the debt security is expected to recover. These
characteristics include: (1) the type of investment, (2) various market factors affecting the fair value of the security
(e.g., interest rates, spread levels, liquidity in the sector, etc.), (3) the length and severity of impairment, and (4) the
public credit rating of the instrument.
The Company estimates the portion of loss attributable to credit using a cash flow model. The inputs to this model
include prepayment, default and loss severity assumptions that are based on industry research and observed data. The
loss projections
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generated by the model are reviewed on a quarterly basis by a cross-functional governance committee. This
governance committee determines whether security impairments are other-than-temporary based on this review.
The following table presents the cumulative credit related losses recognized in earnings on debt securities held by the
Company as of:

Three Months
Ended   September
30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Cumulative balance at beginning of period $60 $56 $56 $55
Credit impairments recognized in earnings on debt securities that have
been previously impaired 1 3 7 7

Reductions due to increases in cash flow expectations on impaired
securities (1 )(3 ) (3 )(6 )

Cumulative balance at end of period $60 $56 $60 $56

Cumulative credit losses recognized in earnings for impaired AFS debt securities held as of September 30, 2014 and
2013 were $60 million and $56 million, respectively. There were no credit losses recognized in earnings for the
Company's HTM portfolio as of September 30, 2014 and 2013. In the three months ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, the Company recognized credit related other-than-temporary impairment losses in earnings of $1 million and $3
million, respectively, related to non-agency MBS in the AFS portfolio. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014
and 2013, $7 million of credit related other-than-temporary impairment losses was recognized in earnings. No
impaired debt securities were sold during the three or nine month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.
Reductions in credit losses due to increases in cash flow expectations were $1 million and $3 million in the three
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, and were $3 million and $6 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and were presented in investment securities interest income on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company does not currently have the intent to sell these debt securities,
and it is not likely that the Company will be required to sell these debt securities prior to the recovery of their
amortized cost bases. As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, $35 million and $54 million, respectively, of pre-tax
non-credit related losses were deferred in OCI.
The Company has determined that credit losses are not expected to be incurred on the remaining agency and
non-agency MBS identified with unrealized losses as of the current reporting date. The unrealized losses on these debt
securities reflect the reduced liquidity in the MBS market and the increased risk spreads due to the uncertainty of the
U.S. macroeconomic environment. Therefore, the Company has determined that these debt securities are not
other-than-temporarily impaired because the Company does not currently have the intent to sell these debt securities,
and it is not likely that the Company will be required to sell these debt securities prior to the recovery of their
amortized cost bases. Additionally, any subsequent increases in the valuation of impaired debt securities do not impact
their recorded cost bases.
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The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at September 30, 2014 by contractual maturity are shown below.
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Distribution of Maturities

(in millions) 1 Year or
Less 1-5 Years 5-10 YearsAfter 10Years Total

Amortized Cost:
Debt securities available for sale
U.S. Treasury $15 $— $— $— $15
State and political subdivisions — — — 10 10
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies and U.S. government sponsored entities 4 56 2,438 15,261 17,759
Other/non-agency — 61 62 624 747
Total debt securities available for sale 19 117 2,500 15,895 18,531
Debt securities held to maturity
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies and U.S. government sponsored entities — — — 3,833 3,833
Other/non-agency — — — 1,456 1,456
Total debt securities held to maturity — — — 5,289 5,289
Total amortized cost of debt securities $19 $117 $2,500 $21,184 $23,820

Fair Value:
Debt securities available for sale
U.S. Treasury $15 $— $— $— $15
State and political subdivisions — — — 10 10
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies and U.S. government sponsored entities 4 60 2,441 15,393 17,898
Other/non-agency — 61 64 593 718
Total debt securities available for sale 19 121 2,505 15,996 18,641
Debt securities held to maturity
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies and U.S. government sponsored entities — — — 3,796 3,796
Other/non-agency — — — 1,482 1,482
Total debt securities held to maturity — — — 5,278 5,278
Total fair value of debt securities $19 $121 $2,505 $21,274 $23,919
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The following table reports the amounts recognized in interest income from investment securities on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations:

Three Months Ended 
 September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Taxable $155 $120 $458 $348
Non-taxable — — — —
Total interest income from investment securities $155 $120 $458 $348
The Company recognized gains on sale of debt securities in earnings of $2 million and $25 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and $27 million and $119 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The amortized cost and fair value of securities pledged are shown below:

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions) Amortized
Cost Fair Value Amortized

Cost Fair Value

Pledged against repurchase agreements $5,129 $5,165 $5,016 $4,998
Pledged against FHLB borrowed funds 1,390 1,416 1 1
Pledged against derivatives to qualify for fiduciary powers, and
to secure public and other deposits as required by law 3,463 3,514 2,818 2,853

The Company regularly enters into security repurchase agreements with unrelated counterparties. Repurchase
agreements are financial transactions that involve the transfer of a security from one party to another and a subsequent
transfer of the same (or "substantially the same") security back to the original party. The Company’s repurchase
agreements are typically short-term transactions (e.g., overnight), but they may be extended to longer terms to
maturity. Such transactions are accounted for as secured borrowed funds on the Company’s financial statements. When
permitted by GAAP, the Company offsets the short-term receivables associated with its reverse repurchase
agreements with the short-term payables associated with its repurchase agreements.

The effects of this offsetting on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are presented in the following table:
September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions)
Gross
Assets
(Liabilities)

Gross
Assets
(Liabilities)
Offset

Net
Amounts of
Assets
(Liabilities)

Gross
Assets
(Liabilities)

Gross
Assets
(Liabilities)
Offset

Net
Amounts of
Assets
(Liabilities)

Securities purchased under agreements to
resell $— $— $— $— $— $—

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase (4,100 )— (4,100 ) (3,000 )— (3,000 )

Note: The Company also offsets certain derivative assets and derivative liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
See Note 11 "Derivatives" to the Company's unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I,
Item 1 — Financial Information for further information.

14

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

23



NOTE 3 - LOANS AND LEASES
A summary of the loans and leases portfolio follows:

(in millions) September 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Commercial $30,356 $28,667
Commercial real estate 7,239 6,948
Leases 3,875 3,780
Total commercial 41,470 39,395
Residential, including originated home equity products 30,458 29,694
Home equity products serviced by others 1,870 2,171
Other secured retail 13,206 10,700
Unsecured retail 3,745 3,899
Total retail 49,279 46,464
Total loans and leases (1) (2) $90,749 $85,859

(1) Excluded from the table above are loans held for sale totaling $208 million as of September 30, 2014 and $1.3
billion as of December 31, 2013. The December 31, 2013 loans held for sale balance primarily related to the
Company's sale of certain assets and liabilities associated with its Chicago-area retail branches. For further discussion,
see Note 13 "Divestitures and Branch Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale" to the Company's unaudited interim
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information.

(2)  Mortgage loans serviced for others by the Company's subsidiaries are not included above, and amounted to $18.1
billion and $18.7 billion at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Loans held for sale totaled $205 million and $176 million at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively, and consisted of residential mortgages originated for sale. Other loans held for sale totaled $3 million
and $1.1 billion at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The other loans held for sale balance at
December 31, 2013 primarily related to the Company's sale of certain assets and liabilities associated with its
Chicago-area retail branches (the "Chicago Divestiture"). See Note 13 "Divestitures and Branch Assets and Liabilities
Held for Sale" to the Company's unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 —
Financial Information for further details.
Loans pledged as collateral for FHLB borrowed funds totaled $19.5 billion and $19.0 billion at September 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively. This collateral consists primarily of residential mortgages and home equity
loans. Loans pledged as collateral to support the contingent ability to borrow at the FRB discount window, if
necessary, totaled $13.4 billion and $13.9 billion at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Company purchased a portfolio of residential loans with an
outstanding principal balance of $1.5 billion, a portfolio of auto loans with an outstanding principal balance of $1.3
billion and a portfolio of student loans with an outstanding principal balance of $59 million. In addition to the $1.0
billion loans sold as part of the Chicago Divestiture, the Company sold portfolios of residential mortgage loans with
outstanding principal balances of $126 million and student loans of $357 million as well as commercial loans with an
outstanding principal balance of $165 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2014. The Company had
no loan portfolio purchase or sale transactions during the nine months ended September 30, 2013.    

NOTE 4 - ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES, NONPERFORMING ASSETS, AND CONCENTRATIONS OF
CREDIT RISK
The ALLL is increased through a provision for credit losses that is charged to earnings, based on the Company’s
quarterly evaluation of the loan portfolio, and is reduced by net charge-offs and the ALLL associated with sold loans.
See Note 1 “Significant Accounting Policies” of the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements, for a
detailed discussion of ALLL methodologies and estimation techniques.
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On a quarterly basis, the Company reviews and refines its estimate of the allowance for credit losses, taking into
consideration changes in portfolio size and composition, historical loss experience, internal risk ratings, current
economic conditions, industry performance trends and other pertinent information. Changes in these factors since
September 30, 2013, led to an increase in the allowance for credit losses as of September 30, 2014. ALLL decreased
over the same period reflecting asset quality improvements and lower charge-offs.
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            During 2013, the Company modified the way that it establishes the ALLL. The ALLL is reviewed separately
for commercial and retail loan portfolios, and the ALLL for each includes an adjustment for qualitative reserves that
includes certain risks, factors and events that might not be measured in the statistical analysis. As a result of this
change, the unallocated reserve was absorbed into the separately measured commercial and retail qualitative reserves.
            There were no other material changes in assumptions or estimation techniques compared with prior periods
that impacted the determination of the current period’s ALLL and the reserve for unfunded lending commitments.

The following is a summary of changes in the allowance for credit losses:
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

(in millions) Commercial Retail Total
Allowance for loan and lease losses as of January 1, 2014 $498 $723 $1,221
Charge-offs (30 )(344 )(374 )
Recoveries 47 84 131
Net recoveries (charge-offs) 17 (260 )(243 )
Provision charged to income 27 196 223
Allowance for loan and lease losses as of September 30, 2014 542 659 1,201
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments as of January 1, 2014 39 — 39
Provision for unfunded lending commitments 24 — 24
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments as of September 30,
2014 63 — 63

Total allowance for credit losses as of September 30, 2014 $605 $659 $1,264
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013

(in millions) Commercial Retail Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan and lease losses as of January 1, 2013 $509 $657 $89 $1,255
Charge-offs (72 )(470 )— (542 )
Recoveries 69 87 — 156
Net charge-offs (3 )(383 )— (386 )
Provision charged to income (51 )329 72 350
Allowance for loan and lease losses as of September 30, 2013 455 603 161 1,219
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments as of January 1,
2013 40 — — 40

Provision for unfunded lending commitments (3 )— — (3 )
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments as of September
30, 2013 37 — — 37

Total allowance for credit losses as of September 30, 2013 $492 $603 $161 $1,256

The recorded investment in loans and leases based on the Company’s evaluation methodology is as follows:
September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions) Commercial Retail Total Commercial Retail Total
Individually evaluated $191 $1,214 $1,405 $239 $1,200 $1,439
Formula-based evaluation 41,279 48,065 89,344 39,156 45,264 84,420
Total $41,470 $49,279 $90,749 $39,395 $46,464 $85,859

The following is a summary of the allowance for credit losses by evaluation method:
September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions) Commercial Retail Total Commercial Retail Total
Individually evaluated $14 $116 $130 $23 $108 $131
Formula-based evaluation 591 543 1,134 514 615 1,129
Allowance for credit losses $605 $659 $1,264 $537 $723 $1,260
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For commercial loans and leases, the Company utilizes regulatory classification ratings to monitor credit quality.
Loans with a “pass” rating are those that the Company believes will be fully repaid in accordance with the contractual
loan terms. Commercial loans and leases that are “criticized” are those that have some weakness that indicates an
increased probability of future loss. For retail loans, the Company primarily uses the loan’s payment and delinquency
status to monitor credit quality. The further a loan is past due, the greater the likelihood of future credit loss. These
credit quality indicators for both commercial and retail loans are continually updated and monitored.
The recorded investment in classes of commercial loans and leases based on regulatory classification ratings is as
follows:

September 30, 2014
Criticized

(in millions) Pass Special
Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Commercial $28,857 $861 $517 $121 $30,356
Commercial real estate 6,869 207 97 66 7,239
Leases 3,814 15 46 — 3,875
Total $39,540 $1,083 $660 $187 $41,470

December 31, 2013
Criticized

(in millions) Pass Special
Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Commercial $27,433 $588 $541 $105 $28,667
Commercial real estate 6,366 339 116 127 6,948
Leases 3,679 40 61 — 3,780
Total $37,478 $967 $718 $232 $39,395

The recorded investment in classes of retail loans, categorized by delinquency status is as follows:
September 30, 2014

(in millions) Current 1-29 Days
Past Due

30-89 Days
Past Due

90 Days or
More Past
Due

Total

Residential, including originated home equity
products $28,852 $811 $227 $568 $30,458

Home equity products serviced by others 1,638 138 42 52 1,870
Other secured retail 12,438 673 79 16 13,206
Unsecured retail 3,548 118 49 30 3,745
Total $46,476 $1,740 $397 $666 $49,279

December 31, 2013

(in millions) Current 1-29 Days
Past Due

30-89 Days
Past Due

90 Days or
More Past
Due

Total

Residential, including originated home equity
products $27,912 $861 $259 $662 $29,694

Home equity products serviced by others 1,901 167 43 60 2,171
Other secured retail 10,068 550 66 16 10,700
Unsecured retail 3,593 185 67 54 3,899
Total $43,474 $1,763 $435 $792 $46,464
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Nonperforming Assets
A summary of nonperforming loans and leases by class is as follows:

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions) Nonaccruing

Accruing and
90 Days or
More
Delinquent

Total
Nonperforming
Loans and
Leases

Nonaccruing

Accruing and
90 Days or
More
Delinquent

Total
Nonperforming
Loans and
Leases

Commercial $93 $— $93 $96 $— $96
Commercial real estate 82 1 83 169 — 169
Leases — — — — — —
Total commercial 175 1 176 265 — 265
Residential, including originated
home equity products 770 — 770 981 — 981

Home equity products serviced
by others 81 — 81 89 — 89

Other secured retail 22 — 22 26 — 26
Unsecured retail 23 7 30 22 33 55
Total retail 896 7 903 1,118 33 1,151
Total $1,071 $8 $1,079 $1,383 $33 $1,416

A summary of other nonperforming assets is as follows:

(in millions) September 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Nonperforming assets, net of valuation allowance:
Commercial $3 $10
Retail 39 40
Nonperforming assets, net of valuation allowance $42 $50

Nonperforming assets consists primarily of other real estate owned and is presented in other assets on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

A summary of key performance indicators is as follows:
September 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Nonperforming commercial loans and leases as a percentage of total loans and
leases 0.19 % 0.31 %

Nonperforming retail loans as a percentage of total loans and leases 1.00 1.34
Total nonperforming loans and leases as a percentage of total loans and leases 1.19 1.65

Nonperforming commercial assets as a percentage of total assets 0.13 0.23
Nonperforming retail assets as a percentage of total assets 0.72 0.97
Total nonperforming assets as a percentage of total assets 0.85 % 1.20 %
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The following is an analysis of the age of the past due amounts (accruing and nonaccruing):
September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions)
 30-89
Days Past
Due

 90 Days
or More
Past Due

 Total Past
Due

 30-89
Days Past
Due

 90 Days
or More
Past Due

 Total Past
Due

Commercial $30 $93 $123 $61 $96 $157
Commercial real estate 42 83 125 34 169 203
Leases 2 — 2 24 — 24
Total commercial 74 176 250 119 265 384
Residential, including originated home equity
products 227 568 795 259 662 921

Home equity products serviced by others 42 52 94 43 60 103
Other secured retail 79 16 95 66 16 82
Unsecured retail 49 30 79 67 54 121
Total retail 397 666 1,063 435 792 1,227
Total $471 $842 $1,313 $554 $1,057 $1,611

Impaired loans include: (1) nonaccruing larger balance commercial loans (greater than $3 million carrying value); and
(2) commercial and retail TDRs. The following is a summary of impaired loan information by class:

September 30, 2014

(in millions)

Impaired
Loans With
a Related
Allowance

Allowance
on Impaired
Loans

Impaired
Loans
Without a
Related
Allowance

Unpaid
Contractual
Balance

Total
Recorded
Investment
in Impaired
Loans

Commercial $116 $14 $53 $195 $169
Commercial real estate — — 34 72 34
Total commercial 116 14 87 267 203
Residential, including originated home equity
products 361 57 518 1,131 879

Home equity products serviced by others 83 14 23 120 106
Other secured retail 21 4 10 39 31
Unsecured retail 198 41 — 198 198
Total retail 663 116 551 1,488 1,214
Total $779 $130 $638 $1,755 $1,417

December 31, 2013

(in millions)

Impaired
Loans With
a Related
Allowance

Allowance
on Impaired
Loans

Impaired
Loans
Without a
Related
Allowance

Unpaid
Contractual
Balance

Total
Recorded
Investment
in Impaired
Loans

Commercial $86 $15 $33 $214 $119
Commercial real estate 76 8 44 221 120
Total commercial 162 23 77 435 239
Residential, including originated home equity
products 355 59 497 1,081 852

Home equity products serviced by others 91 11 21 125 112
Other secured retail 23 3 12 43 35
Unsecured retail 201 35 — 201 201
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Total retail 670 108 530 1,450 1,200
Total $832 $131 $607 $1,885 $1,439
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Additional information on impaired loans is as follows:
For the Three Months Ended September 30,
2014 2013

(in millions)
Interest
Income
Recognized

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

Average
Recorded
Investment

Commercial $2 $138 $1 $154
Commercial real estate — 62 — 154
Total commercial 2 200 1 308
Residential, including originated home equity products 6 865 6 762
Home equity products serviced by others 1 106 1 118
Other secured retail 1 30 (4 )36
Unsecured retail 3 195 6 197
Total retail 11 1,196 9 1,113
Total $13 $1,396 $10 $1,421

For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
2014 2013

(in millions)
Interest
Income
Recognized

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

Average
Recorded
Investment

Commercial $2 $141 $2 $169
Commercial real estate 1 70 1 172
Total commercial 3 211 3 341
Residential, including originated home equity products 19 835 9 727
Home equity products serviced by others 4 105 4 119
Other secured retail 1 29 — 35
Unsecured retail 8 188 8 185
Total retail 32 1,157 21 1,066
Total $35 $1,368 $24 $1,407

Troubled Debt Restructurings
A loan modification is identified as a TDR when the Company or a bankruptcy court grants the borrower a concession
the Company would not otherwise make in response to the borrower’s financial difficulties. TDRs typically result from
the Company's loss mitigation efforts and are undertaken in order to improve the likelihood of recovery and continuity
of the relationship. The Company's loan modifications are handled on a case-by-case basis and are negotiated to
achieve mutually agreeable terms that maximize loan collectability and meet the borrower's financial needs.
Concessions granted in TDRs for all classes of loans may include lowering the interest rate, forgiving a portion of
principal, extending the loan term, lowering scheduled payments for a specified period of time, principal forbearance,
or capitalizing past due amounts. A rate increase can be a concession if the increased rate is lower than a market rate
for debt with risk similar to that of the restructured loan. TDRs for commercial loans and leases may also involve
creating a multiple note structure, accepting non-cash assets, accepting an equity interest, or receiving a
performance-based fee. In some cases a TDR may involve multiple concessions. The financial effects of TDRs for all
loan classes may include lower income (either due to a lower interest rate or a delay in the timing of cash flows),
larger loan loss provisions, and accelerated charge-offs if the modification renders the loan collateral-dependent. In
some cases interest income throughout the term of the loan may increase if, for example, the loan is extended or the
interest rate is increased as a result of the restructuring.
Because TDRs are impaired loans, the Company measures impairment by comparing the present value of expected
future cash flows, or, when appropriate, to the fair value of collateral, to the loan’s recorded investment. Any excess of
recorded investment over the present value of expected future cash flows or collateral value is recognized by creating
a valuation allowance or increasing
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an existing valuation allowance. Any portion of the loan’s recorded investment the Company does not expect to collect
as a result of the modification is charged off at the time of modification.
Commercial TDRs were $140 million and $167 million on September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
Retail TDRs totaled $1.2 billion on September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Commitments to lend additional
funds to debtors owing receivables which were TDRs were $48 million and $52 million on September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively.
The following table summarizes how loans were modified during the three months ended September 30, 2014, the
charge-offs related to the modifications, and the impact on the ALLL. The reported balances include loans that
became TDRs during 2014, and were paid off in full, charged off, or sold prior to September 30, 2014.

Primary Modification Types
Interest Rate Reduction(1) Maturity Extension(2)

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Commercial 5 $— $— 10 $2 $2
Commercial real estate 1 — — 3 1 1
Total commercial 6 — — 13 3 3
Residential, including originated
home equity products 57 6 7 87 6 6

Home equity products serviced by
others 8 — — — — —

Other secured retail 7 — — 4 — —
Unsecured retail 513 3 3 — — —
Total retail 585 9 10 91 6 6
Total 591 $9 $10 104 $9 $9

Primary Modification Types
Other(3)

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Net Change
to ALLL
Resulting
from
Modification

Charge-offs
Resulting
from
Modification

Commercial 3 $— $— $— $—
Commercial real estate — — — — —
Total commercial 3 — — — —
Residential, including originated home
equity products 466 34 32 (1 )2

Home equity products serviced by others 35 2 2 (1 )—
Other secured retail 262 5 3 — 2
Unsecured retail 346 6 6 1 —
Total retail 1,109 47 43 (1 )4
Total 1,112 $47 $43 ($1 ) $4
(1) Includes modifications that consist of multiple concessions, one of which is an interest rate reduction.

(2) Includes modifications that consist of multiple concessions, one of which is a maturity extension (unless one of the
other concessions was an interest rate reduction).

(3) Includes modifications other than interest rate reductions or maturity extensions, such as lowering scheduled
payments for a specified period of time, principal forbearance, capitalizing arrearages, and principal forgiveness. Also
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plans. Modifications can include the deferral of accrued interest resulting in post modification balances being higher
than pre-modification.
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The following table summarizes how loans were modified during the three months ended September 30, 2013, the
charge-offs related to the modifications, and the impact on the ALLL. The reported balances include loans that
became TDRs during 2013, and were paid off in full, charged off, or sold prior to September 30, 2013.

Primary Modification Types
Interest Rate Reduction(1) Maturity Extension(2)

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Commercial 29 $1 $1 22 $1 $1
Commercial real estate 6 4 4 — — —
Total commercial 35 5 5 22 1 1
Residential, including originated
home equity products 102 11 12 11 1 1

Home equity products serviced by
others 4 1 1 — — —

Other secured retail 29 — — — — —
Unsecured retail 712 4 4 — — —
Total retail 847 16 17 11 1 1
Total 882 $21 $22 33 $2 $2

Primary Modification Types
Other(3)

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Net Change
to ALLL
Resulting
from
Modification

Charge-offs
Resulting
from
Modification

Commercial 3 $1 $1 $1 $—
Commercial real estate 1 — — (2 )—
Total commercial 4 1 1 (1 )—
Residential, including originated home
equity products 598 44 42 1 1

Home equity products serviced by others 105 5 4 1 1
Other secured retail 370 5 3 — 2
Unsecured retail 541 10 10 — —
Total retail 1,614 64 59 2 4
Total 1,618 $65 $60 $1 $4

(1) Includes modifications that consist of multiple concessions, one of which is an interest rate reduction.

(2) Includes modifications that consist of multiple concessions, one of which is a maturity extension (unless one of the
other concessions was an interest rate reduction).

(3) Includes modifications other than interest rate reductions or maturity extensions, such as lowering scheduled
payments for a specified period of time, principal forbearance, capitalizing arrearages, and principal forgiveness. Also
included are the following: deferrals, trial modifications, certain bankruptcies, loans in forbearance and prepayment
plans. Modifications can include the deferral of accrued interest resulting in post modification balances being higher
than pre-modification.
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The following table summarizes how loans were modified during the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the
charge-offs related to the modifications, and the impact on the ALLL. The reported balances include loans that
became TDRs during 2014, and were paid off in full, charged off, or sold prior to September 30, 2014.

Primary Modification Types
Interest Rate Reduction(1) Maturity Extension(2)

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Commercial 20 $7 $7 38 $4 $4
Commercial real estate 3 — — 5 1 1
Total commercial 23 7 7 43 5 5
Residential, including originated
home equity products 193 20 21 353 24 22

Home equity products serviced by
others 29 1 1 1 — —

Other secured retail 65 1 1 11 — —
Unsecured retail 1,698 9 9 — — —
Total retail 1,985 31 32 365 24 22
Total 2,008 $38 $39 408 $29 $27

Primary Modification Types
Other(3)

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Net Change
to ALLL
Resulting
from
Modification

Charge-offs
Resulting
from
Modification

Commercial 5 $— $— ($8 ) $—
Commercial real estate — — — — —
Total commercial 5 — — (8 )—
Residential, including originated home
equity products 1,387 107 101 (4 )7

Home equity products serviced by others 144 6 6 (1 )—
Other secured retail 708 12 8 — 4
Unsecured retail 1,199 22 22 2 —
Total retail 3,438 147 137 (3 )11
Total 3,443 $147 $137 ($11 ) $11

(1) Includes modifications that consist of multiple concessions, one of which is an interest rate reduction.

(2) Includes modifications that consist of multiple concessions, one of which is a maturity extension (unless one of the
other concessions was an interest rate reduction).

(3) Includes modifications other than interest rate reductions or maturity extensions, such as lowering scheduled
payments for a specified period of time, principal forbearance, capitalizing arrearages, and principal forgiveness. Also
included are the following: deferrals, trial modifications, certain bankruptcies, loans in forbearance and prepayment
plans. Modifications can include the deferral of accrued interest resulting in post modification balances being higher
than pre-modification.
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The following table summarizes how loans were modified during the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the
charge-offs related to the modifications, and the impact on the ALLL. The reported balances include loans that
became TDRs during 2013, and were paid off in full, charged off, or sold prior to September 30, 2013.

Primary Modification Types
Interest Rate Reduction(1) Maturity Extension(2)

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Commercial 100 $5 $5 106 $5 $5
Commercial real estate 10 7 7 1 — —
Total commercial 110 12 12 107 5 5
Residential, including originated
home equity products 340 38 41 91 8 8

Home equity products serviced by
others 23 2 2 1 — —

Other secured retail 224 2 2 2 — —
Unsecured retail 2,054 11 11 — — —
Total retail 2,641 53 56 94 8 8
Total 2,751 $65 $68 201 $13 $13

Primary Modification Types
Other(3)

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Net Change
to ALLL
Resulting
from
Modification

Charge-offs
Resulting
from
Modification

Commercial 6 $1 $1 $1 $—
Commercial real estate 1 — — (3 )—
Total commercial 7 1 1 (2 )—
Residential, including originated home
equity products 1,648 129 122 6 7

Home equity products serviced by others 250 12 9 1 3
Other secured retail 1,217 13 10 — 3
Unsecured retail 2,077 38 38 (1 )—
Total retail 5,192 192 179 6 13
Total 5,199 $193 $180 $4 $13

(1) Includes modifications that consist of multiple concessions, one of which is an interest rate reduction.

(2) Includes modifications that consist of multiple concessions, one of which is a maturity extension (unless one of the
other concessions was an interest rate reduction).

(3) Includes modifications other than interest rate reductions or maturity extensions, such as lowering scheduled
payments for a specified period of time, principal forbearance, capitalizing arrearages, and principal forgiveness. Also
included are the following: deferrals, trial modifications, certain bankruptcies, loans in forbearance and prepayment
plans. Modifications can include the deferral of accrued interest resulting in post modification balances being higher
than pre-modification.
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The table below summarizes TDRs that defaulted during the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 within
12 months of their modification date.

September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Balance
Defaulted

Number of
Contracts

Balance
Defaulted

Commercial 5 $4 7 $1
Commercial real estate 1 — — —
Total commercial 6 4 7 1
Residential, including originated home equity products 247 22 289 19
Home equity products serviced by others 23 — 51 —
Other secured retail 32 — 84 1
Unsecured retail 224 3 414 6
Total retail 526 25 838 26
Total 532 $29 845 $27
The table below summarizes TDRs that defaulted during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 within
12 months of their modification date.

September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013

(dollars in millions) Number of
Contracts

Balance
Defaulted

Number of
Contracts

Balance
Defaulted

Commercial 22 $7 8 $1
Commercial real estate 2 1 1 —
Total commercial 24 8 9 1
Residential, including originated home equity products 676 55 1,413 104
Home equity products serviced by others 69 1 201 4
Other secured retail 99 1 214 2
Unsecured retail 728 8 1,006 14
Total retail 1,572 65 2,834 124
Total 1,596 $73 2,843 $125

 For purposes of the tables above, a payment default is defined as being past due 90 days or more under the modified
terms. Amounts represent the loan's recorded investment at the time of payment default. Loan data includes loans
meeting the criteria that were paid off in full, charged off, or sold prior to September 30, 2014 and 2013. If a TDR of
any loan type becomes 90 days past due after being modified, the loan is written down to the fair value of collateral
less cost to sell. The amount written off is charged to the ALLL.
Concentrations of Credit Risk
Most of the Company's business activity is with customers located in the New England, Mid-Atlantic and Mid-West
regions. Generally, loans are collateralized by assets including real estate, inventory, accounts receivable, other
personal property and investment securities. As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company had a
significant amount of loans collateralized by residential and commercial real estate. There are no significant
concentrations in particular industries within the commercial loan portfolio. Exposure to credit losses arising from
lending transactions may fluctuate with fair values of collateral supporting loans, which may not perform according to
contractual agreements. The Company's policy is to collateralize loans to the extent necessary; however, unsecured
loans are also granted on the basis of the financial strength of the applicant and the facts surrounding the transaction.
Certain loan products, including residential mortgages, home equity loans and lines of credit, and credit cards, have
contractual features that may increase credit exposure to the Company in the event of an increase in interest rates or a
decline in housing values. These products include loans that exceed 90% of the value of the underlying collateral
(high LTV loans), interest-only and negative amortization residential mortgages, and loans with low introductory
rates. Certain loans have more than one of these characteristics.
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The following table presents balances of loans with these characteristics:
September 30, 2014

(in millions) Residential
Mortgages

Home Equity
Loans and Lines
of Credit

Home Equity
Products
serviced by
others

Credit Cards Total

High loan-to-value $847 $2,183 $1,291 $— $4,321
Interest only/negative
amortization 863 — — — 863

Low introductory rate — — — 100 100
Multiple characteristics and
other 56 — — — 56

Total $1,766 $2,183 $1,291 $100 $5,340
December 31, 2013

(in millions) Residential
Mortgages

Home Equity
Loans and Lines
of Credit

Home Equity
Products
serviced by
others

Credit Cards Total

High loan-to-value $1,054 $2,798 $1,581 $— $5,433
Interest only/negative
amortization 882 — — — 882

Low introductory rate — — — 119 119
Multiple characteristics and
other 96 — — — 96

Total $2,032 $2,798 $1,581 $119 $6,530

NOTE 5 - GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of fair value of assets purchased over the purchase price. Since 1988, the Company has
completed more than 25 acquisitions of banks or assets of banks. The changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the
nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were:

(in millions) Consumer
Banking

Commercial
Banking Total

Balance at December 31, 2012 $6,393 $4,918 $11,311
Impairment losses based on results of interim impairment
testing (4,435 ) — (4,435 )

Transfers 178 (178 ) —
Balance at September 30, 2013 $2,136 $4,740 $6,876
Balance at December 31, 2013 $2,136 $4,740 $6,876
Adjustments — — —
Balance at September 30, 2014 $2,136 $4,740 $6,876

Accumulated impairment losses related to the Consumer Banking reporting unit totaled $5.9 billion at September 30,
2014, and 2013. The accumulated impairment losses related to the Commercial Banking unit totaled $50 million at
September 30, 2014 and 2013.

The Company performs an annual test for impairment of goodwill at a level of reporting referred to as a reporting unit.
The Company has identified and allocated goodwill to the following reporting units based upon reviews of the
structure of the Company's executive team and supporting functions, resource allocations and financial reporting
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processes:

•Consumer Banking
•Commercial Banking

The Company tested the value of goodwill as of June 30, 2013, and recorded an impairment charge of $4.4 billion
relating to the Consumer Banking reporting unit. The impairment charge, which was a non-cash item, had minimal
impact on the Company's regulatory capital ratios and liquidity, and for segment reporting purposes was included in
Other. Refer to Note 19 "Business
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Segments" to the Company's unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial
Information for further information regarding segment reporting.

The valuation of goodwill is dependent on forward-looking expectations related to the performance of the U.S.
economy and the associated financial performance of the Company. The prolonged delay in the full recovery of the
U.S. economy, and the impact of that delay on earnings expectations, prompted a goodwill impairment test as of June
30, 2013. Although the U.S. economy has demonstrated signs of recovery, notably improvements in unemployment
and housing, the pace and extent of these indicators, as well as in overall GDP, have lagged previous expectations.
The impact of the slow recovery is most evident in the Company's Consumer Banking reporting unit. Forecasted
economic growth for the U.S., coupled with the continuing impact of the new regulatory framework in the financial
industry, have resulted in a deceleration of expected growth for the Consumer Banking reporting unit's future profits
and an associated goodwill impairment. Refer to Note 1 "Significant Accounting Policies" in the Company's audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for information regarding the impairment test.

NOTE 6 - MORTGAGE BANKING
In its mortgage banking business, the Company sells residential mortgage loans to government-sponsored entities and
other parties, who may issue securities backed by pools of such loans. The Company retains no beneficial interests in
these sales, but may retain the servicing rights of the loans sold. The Company is obligated to subsequently repurchase
a loan if the purchaser discovers a standard representation or warranty violation such as noncompliance with
eligibility requirements, customer fraud, or servicing violations. This primarily occurs during a loan file review.
The Company received $1.1 billion and $3.6 billion of proceeds from the sale of residential mortgages in the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and recognized gains on such sales of $25 million and $58
million in the nine months then ended, respectively. Pursuant to the standard representations and warranties
obligations discussed in the preceding paragraph, the Company repurchased mortgage loans totaling $22 million and
$30 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Mortgage servicing fees, a component of mortgage banking income, were $44 million and $49 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company recorded a valuation recovery of $8 million
compared to a recovery of $42 million for its MSRs for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
Changes related to MSRs were as follows:

Nine Months Ended September
30,

(in millions) 2014 2013
MSRs:
Balance as of January 1 $208 $215
Amount capitalized 13 39
Amortization (32 ) (41 )
Carrying amount before valuation allowance 189 213
Valuation allowance for servicing assets:
Balance as of January 1 23 70
Valuation recovery (8 ) (42 )
Balance at end of period 15 28
Net carrying value of MSRs $174 $185

MSRs are presented in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The fair value of MSRs is estimated using a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated future net
servicing cash flows, taking into consideration actual and expected mortgage loan prepayment rates, discount rates,
servicing costs, and other economic factors, which are determined based on current market conditions. The valuation
model uses a static discounted cash flow methodology incorporating current market interest rates. A static model does
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not attempt to forecast or predict the future direction of interest rates; rather it estimates the amount and timing of
future servicing cash flows using current market interest rates. The current mortgage interest rate influences the
expected prepayment rate and therefore, the length of the cash flows associated with the servicing asset, while the
discount rate determines the present value of those cash flows. Expected mortgage loan prepayment assumptions are
obtained using the QRM Multi Component prepayment model. The Company periodically obtains third-party
valuations of its MSRs to assess the reasonableness of the fair value calculated by the valuation model.
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The key economic assumptions used to estimate the value of MSRs are presented in the following table:

September 30,
(dollars in millions) 2014 2013
Fair value $187 $193
Weighted average life (in years) 5.3 5.1
Weighted average constant prepayment rate 12.2 % 13.9 %
Weighted average discount rate 10.3 % 10.8 %

The key economic assumptions used in estimating the fair value of MSRs capitalized during the period were as
follows:

Nine Months Ended September
30,
2014 2013

Weighted average life (in years) 5.7 6.1
Weighted average constant prepayment rate 11.7 % 12.6 %
Weighted average discount rate 10.3 % 10.5 %

The sensitivity analysis below as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, presents the impact to current fair value of an
immediate 50 basis points and 100 basis points adverse change in the key economic assumptions and presents the
decline in fair value that would occur if the adverse change were realized. These sensitivities are hypothetical. The
effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value of the mortgage servicing rights is calculated
independently without changing any other assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in
another (for example, changes in interest rates, which drive changes in prepayment speeds, could result in changes in
the discount rates), which might amplify or counteract the sensitivities. The primary risk inherent in the Company’s
MSRs is an increase in prepayments of the underlying mortgage loans serviced, which is dependent upon market
movements of interest rates.

Nine Months Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013
Prepayment rate:
Decline in fair value from 50 basis points adverse change in interest rates $6 $7
Decline in fair value from 100 basis points adverse change in interest rates 11 10
Weighted average discount rate:
Decline in fair value from 50 basis points adverse change 3 3
Decline in fair value from 100 basis points adverse change 6 6

NOTE 7 - BORROWED FUNDS

The following is a summary of the Company’s short-term borrowed funds:

(in millions) As of September 30,
2014

As of December 31,
2013

Federal funds purchased $— $689
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 5,184 4,102
Other short-term borrowed funds 6,715 2,251
Total short-term borrowed funds $11,899 $7,042
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Key data related to short-term borrowed funds is presented in the following table:

(dollars in millions)
As of and For the Nine
Months Ended
September 30, 2014

As of and For the Year
Ended December 31,
2013

Weighted-average interest rate at period end:
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 0.12 % 0.09 %

Other short-term borrowed funds 0.25 0.20
Maximum amount outstanding at month-end during the period:
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase $7,022 $5,114

Other short-term borrowed funds 7,702 2,251
Average amount outstanding during the period:
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase $5,908 $2,400

Other short-term borrowed funds 5,479 259
Weighted-average interest rate during the period:
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 0.08 % 0.31 %

Other short-term borrowed funds 0.26 0.44

The following is a summary of the Company’s long-term borrowed funds:
(in millions) September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Citizens Financial Group, Inc.:
4.150% fixed rate subordinated debt, due 2022 $350 $350
5.158% fixed-to-floating rate subordinated debt, (LIBOR + 3.56%)
callable, due 2023(1) 333 333

4.771% fixed rate subordinated debt, due 2023(1) 333 333
4.691% fixed rate subordinated debt, due 2024(1) 334 334
4.153% fixed rate subordinated debt, due 2024(1) 333 —
4.023% fixed rate subordinated debt, due 2024(1) 333 —
Banking Subsidiaries:
Federal Home Loan advances due through 2033 23 25
Other 23 30
Total long-term borrowed funds $2,062 $1,405

(1) Intercompany borrowed funds with the RBS Group. See Note 14 “Related Party Transactions” to the Company's
unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information included elsewhere in
this report.

Advances, lines of credit, and letters of credit from the FHLB are collateralized by pledged mortgages and pledged
securities at least sufficient to satisfy the collateral maintenance level established by the FHLB. The utilized
borrowing capacity for FHLB advances and letters of credit was $11.0 billion and $4.2 billion at September 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively. The Company’s available FHLB borrowing capacity was $3.5 billion and $8.2
billion at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The Company can also borrow from the FRB
discount window to meet short-term liquidity requirements. Collateral, such as investment securities and loans, is
pledged to provide borrowing capacity at the FRB. At September 30, 2014, the Company’s unused secured borrowing
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capacity was approximately $26.0 billion, which includes free securities, FHLB borrowing capacity, and FRB
discount window capacity.
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The following is a summary of maturities for the Company’s long-term borrowed funds at September 30, 2014:
Year (in millions)
2015 or on demand $1
2016 5
2017 13
2018 11
2019 1
2020 and thereafter 2,031
Total $2,062

NOTE 8 - PREFERRED STOCK

As of September 30, 2014, the Company had authorized 100,000,000 shares of $25.00 par value undesignated
preferred stock. These undesignated shares were authorized on April 9, 2014, by resolution of the Board of Directors.
The Company's Board of Directors (the "Board of Directors") or any authorized committee thereof are authorized to
provide for the issuance of these shares in one or more series, and by filing a certificate pursuant to applicable law of
the State of Delaware, to establish or change from time to time the number of shares of each such series, and to fix the
designations, powers, including voting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, preferences and the relative,
participating, optional or other special rights of the shares of each series and any qualifications, limitations and
restrictions thereof.
Prior to April 9, 2014, the Company had authorized 30,000 of $1.00 par value non-cumulative, non-voting perpetual
preferred stock. That preferred stock ranked senior to the common stock of the Company with respect to dividend
rights upon liquidation or dissolution of the Company. The stock was not convertible into any other property of the
Company, nor was it redeemable by either the Company or the holder thereof. Dividends were non-cumulative and
were payable quarterly at LIBOR plus 180 basis points, if and when declared by the Board of Directors. In the event
of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, holders of each share of the preferred stock outstanding
were entitled to be paid, out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to stockholders, before any
payment was made to the holders of common stock, an amount equal to $100,000 per share of preferred stock then
issued and outstanding.
There were no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding during 2014 or 2013.

NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Pension Plans
The Company maintains a non-contributory pension plan (the “Plan” or “qualified plan”) that was closed to new hires and
re-hires effective January 1, 2009 and frozen to all participants effective December 31, 2012. Benefits under the Plan
are based on employees' years of service and highest 5-year average eligible compensation. The Plan is funded on a
current basis, in compliance with the requirements of ERISA. The Company also provides an unfunded, non-qualified
supplemental retirement plan (the “non-qualified plan”), which was closed and frozen consistent with the qualified plan.
RBS Group restructured the administration of employee benefit plans during 2008. As a result, the qualified and
non-qualified pension plans of certain RBS Group subsidiaries referred to as the Company's "Affiliates" merged with
the Company's pension plans. In September 2014, in preparation for the IPO, the Company divested portions of the
qualified and non-qualified plans to newly established plans sponsored by the Affiliates. Citizens remains the sponsor
of the original plans, which provides benefits for its current and former employees. RBS is the plan sponsor of the
newly established plans, which provide benefits for current and former employees of the Affiliates. As a result of this
divestiture, which was recorded as a plan settlement, the Company transferred $114 million of plan assets and $148
million of plan liabilities from the qualified plan to the new plan for Affiliates. The Company also transferred
liabilities of $7 million related to the non-qualified plan to the new plan established for Affiliates.
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The following table presents the components of net periodic (income) cost for the Company's qualified and
non-qualified plans:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30
Qualified
Plan

Non-Qualified
Plan Total Qualified

Plan
Non-Qualified
Plan Total

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Service cost $1 $1 $— $— $1 $1 $3 $3 $— $— $3 $3
Interest cost 11 10 1 1 12 11 33 31 3 3 36 34
Expected return on plan
assets (18 )(17 ) — — (18 )(17 ) (53 )(51 ) — — (53 )(51 )

Amortization of actuarial
loss 2 3 — — 2 3 6 9 1 1 7 10

Net periodic pension
(income) cost ($4 ) ($3 ) $1 $1 ($3 ) ($2 ) ($11) ($8 ) $4 $4 ($7 ) ($4 )

Postretirement Benefits
The Company and Affiliates merged their postretirement plans into a single postretirement plan in 2008 and continue
to provide health care insurance benefits for certain retired employees and their spouses. In preparation for the IPO,
the Company divested the portion of the postretirement plan associated with the Affiliates in September 2014. As a
result, the Company transferred liabilities of approximately $7 million to the Affiliates.
Employees enrolled in medical coverage immediately prior to retirement and meeting eligibility requirements can
elect retiree medical coverage. Employees and covered spouses can continue coverage at the full cost, except for a
small group described below. However, coverage must be elected at the time of retirement and cannot be elected at a
future date. Spouses may be covered only if the spouse is covered at the time of the employee’s retirement.
The Company reviews coverage on an annual basis and reserves the right to modify or cancel coverage at any renewal
date. The Company’s cost sharing for certain full-time employees, who were hired prior to August 1, 1993 with 25
years of service who reach retirement age (under age 65) while employed by the Company is 70%; for those with
15-24 years of service, the Company’s share is 50%. Also, the Company shares in the cost for retiree medical benefits
for a closed group of grandfathered arrangements from acquisitions. A small, closed group of retirees receive life
insurance coverage. Effective July 1, 2014, the Company utilizes a private health care exchange to provide medical
and dental benefits to current and future Medicare-eligible plan participants. The Company provides a fixed subsidy to
a small, closed group of retirees and spouses based on the subsidy levels prior to July 1, 2014; retirees and spouses
pay the cost of benefits in excess of the fixed subsidy.
As a result of divesting the portion of the pension and other benefit plans associated with the Affiliates, the Company
recorded an $18 million cash liability due to RBS.

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES
Income Tax Provision (Benefit)
The provision for income taxes was $85 million and $76 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. This resulted in an effective tax rate of 31% and 35% for the three months ended September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. The provision (benefit) for income taxes was $317 million and $(98) million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The provision represented an effective tax rate of 32% and
3% for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30,
2014, the effective tax rate compared favorably to the statutory rate of 35% primarily as a result of tax credits and the
permanent benefit of tax-exempt income. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the effective tax rate
compared favorably to the statutory rate of 35% primarily as a result of the tax rate impact of a goodwill impairment
charge.
Deferred Tax Liability
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At September 30, 2014, the Company reported a net deferred tax liability of $354 million, compared to a $199 million
liability as of December 31, 2013. The increase in the net deferred tax liability is primarily attributable to the
utilization of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, in addition to a decrease in the unrealized loss reported
on securities AFS, derivative instruments, and hedging activities, which were both partially offset by a decrease in the
deferred tax liability related to temporary differences.
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NOTE 11 - DERIVATIVES
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into a variety of derivative transactions in order to meet the
financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. The Company does not use derivatives for speculative purposes.
The Company’s derivative instruments are recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Information
regarding the valuation methodology and inputs used to estimate the fair value of the Company’s derivative
instruments is described in Note 15 "Fair Value Measurements" to the Company's unaudited interim Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information.
The following table identifies derivative instruments included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in derivative assets
and derivative liabilities:

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions) Notional
Amount(1)

Derivative
Assets

Derivative
Liabilities

Notional
Amount(1)

Derivative
Assets

Derivative
Liabilities

Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps $5,000 $22 $203 $5,500 $23 $412
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps 28,940 541 452 29,355 654 558
Foreign exchange contracts 8,278 137 132 7,771 94 87
Other contracts 686 6 10 569 7 10
Total derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments 684 594 755 655

Gross derivative fair values 706 797 778 1,067
Less: Gross amounts offset in
the Consolidated Balance
Sheets(2)

(159 ) (159 ) (128 ) (128 )

Total net derivative fair values
presented in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets(3)

$547 $638 $650 $939

(1) The notional or contractual amount of interest rate derivatives and foreign exchange contracts is the amount upon
which interest and other payments under the contract are based. For interest rate derivatives, the notional amount is
typically not exchanged. Therefore, notional amounts should not be taken as the measure of credit or market risk, as
they tend to greatly overstate the true economic risk of these contracts.

(2) Amounts represent the impact of legally enforceable master netting agreements that allow the Company to settle
positive and negative positions.

(3) The Company also offsets assets and liabilities associated with repurchase agreements on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. See Note 2 "Securities" to the Company's unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in
Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information for further information.

The Company’s derivative transactions are internally divided into three sub-groups: institutional, customer and
residential loan.

Institutional derivatives
The institutional derivatives portfolio primarily consists of interest rate swap agreements that are used to hedge the
interest rate risk associated with the Company’s investment securities, loans and financing liabilities (i.e., borrowed
funds, deposits, etc.). The goal of the Company’s interest rate hedging activities is to manage interest rate sensitivity so
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that movements in interest rates do not significantly adversely affect net interest income.
The Company enters into certain interest rate swap agreements to hedge the risk associated with floating rate loans.
By entering into pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate swaps, the Company was able to minimize the variability in
the cash flows of these assets due to changes in interest rates. The Company has outstanding interest rate swap
agreements designed to hedge a portion of the Company’s borrowed funds and deposits. By entering into a
pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate swap, a portion of these liabilities has been effectively converted to a fixed rate
liability for the term of the interest rate swap agreement.
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Customer derivatives
The customer derivatives portfolio consists of interest rate swap agreements and option contracts that are transacted to
meet the financing needs of the Company’s customers. Offsetting swap and cap agreements are simultaneously
transacted to effectively eliminate the Company’s market risk associated with the customer derivative products. The
customer derivatives portfolio also includes foreign exchange contracts that are entered into on behalf of customers for
the purpose of hedging exposure related to cash orders and loans and deposits denominated in foreign currency. The
primary risks associated with these transactions arise from exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
the ability of the counterparties to meet the terms of the contract. To manage this market risk, the Company
simultaneously enters into offsetting foreign exchange contracts.
Residential loan derivatives
The Company enters into residential loan commitments that allow residential mortgage customers to lock in the
interest rate on a residential mortgage while the loan undergoes the underwriting process. The Company also uses
forward sales contracts to protect the value of residential mortgage loans and loan commitments that are being
underwritten for future sale to investors in the secondary market.
The Company has certain derivative transactions that are designated as hedging instruments described as follows:
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
The Company’s total institutional hedging portfolio qualifies for hedge accounting. This includes interest rate swaps
that are designated in highly effective cash flow hedging relationships. The Company formally documents at inception
all hedging relationships, as well as risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking various accounting
hedges. Additionally, the Company uses dollar offset or regression analysis at the hedge’s inception, and monthly
thereafter to assess whether the derivatives are expected to be, or have been, highly effective in offsetting changes in
the hedged item’s expected cash flows. The Company discontinues hedge accounting when it is determined that a
derivative is not expected to be or has ceased to be effective as a hedge, and then reflects changes in fair value in
earnings after termination of the hedge relationship.
Cash flow hedges
The Company has outstanding interest rate swap agreements designed to hedge a portion of the Company’s floating
rate assets and financing liabilities (including its borrowed funds and deposits). All of these swaps have been deemed
as highly effective cash flow hedges. The effective portion of the hedging gains and losses associated with these
hedges are recorded in OCI; the ineffective portion of the hedging gains and losses is recorded in earnings (other
income). Hedging gains and losses on derivative contracts reclassified from OCI to current period earnings are
included in the line item in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations in which the hedged item is
recorded, and in the same period that the hedged item affects earnings. During the next 12 months, approximately $23
million of net loss (pre-tax) on derivative instruments included in OCI is expected to be reclassified to net interest
expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Hedging gains and losses associated with the Company’s cash flow hedges are immediately reclassified from OCI to
current period earnings (other income) if it becomes probable that the hedged forecasted transactions will not occur
during the originally specified time period.
The following table summarizes certain information related to the Company’s cash flow hedges:
The Effect of Cash Flow Hedges on Net Income and Stockholders' Equity

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Effective portion of gain (loss) recognized in OCI(1) $27 $2 $217 ($191 )
Amounts reclassified from OCI to interest income(2) 18 18 54 38
Amounts reclassified from OCI to interest expense(2) (23 )(48 ) (79 )(160 )
Amounts reclassified from OCI to other income(3) — — — (2 )

(1) The cumulative effective gains and losses on the Company's cash flow hedging activities are included on the
accumulated other comprehensive loss line item on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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(2) This amount includes both (a) the amortization of effective gains and losses associated with the Company's
terminated cash flow hedges and (b) the current reporting period's interest settlements realized on the Company's
active cash flow hedges. Both (a) and (b) were previously included on the accumulated other comprehensive loss line
item on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and were subsequently recorded as adjustments to the interest expense of the
underlying hedged item.
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(3) This amount represents hedging gains and losses that have been immediately reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss based on the probability that the hedged forecasted transactions would not occur by the originally
specified time period. This amount is reflected in the other income line item on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.
Economic Hedges
The Company’s customer derivatives are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. These include
interest rate and foreign exchange derivative contracts that are transacted to meet the hedging and financing needs of
the Company’s customers. Mark-to-market adjustments to the fair value of customer related interest rate contracts are
included in other income in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Mark-to-market adjustments to
the fair value of foreign exchange contracts relating to foreign currency loans are included in interest and fees on loans
and leases in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations, while all other foreign currency contract fair
value changes are included in foreign exchange and trade finance fees. In both cases, the mark-to-market gains and
losses associated with the customer derivatives are mitigated by the mark-to-market gains and losses on the offsetting
interest rate and foreign exchange derivative contracts transacted.
The Company’s residential loan derivatives (including residential loan commitments and forward sales contracts) are
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Mark-to-market adjustments to the fair value of residential
loan commitments and forward sale contracts are included in noninterest income under mortgage banking fees.
The following table summarizes certain information related to the Company’s economic hedges:
The Effect of Customer Derivatives and Economic Hedges on Net Income

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Customer derivative contracts
Customer interest rate contracts(1) $2 $55 $151 ($95 )
Customer foreign exchange contracts(1) (60 ) 32 (54 ) 22
Residential loan commitments(3) (4 ) 48 4 8

Economic hedges
Offsetting derivatives transactions to hedge interest rate risk on
customer interest rate contracts(1) 5 (45 ) (130 ) 133

Offsetting derivatives transactions to hedge foreign exchange risk
on customer foreign exchange contracts(2) 59 (33 ) 52 (20 )

Forward sale contracts(3) 2 (21 ) (2 ) 19
Total $4 $36 $21 $67
(1) Reported in other income on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
(2) Reported in foreign exchange and trade finance fees on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
(3) Reported in mortgage banking fees on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments
                  Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customers in accordance with conditions
contractually agreed upon in advance. Generally, the commitments have fixed expiration dates or termination clauses
and may require payment of a fee. Since many of these commitments are expected to expire without being drawn
upon, the contract amounts are not necessarily indicative of future cash requirements.
When-issued securities are agreements to purchase securities that have been authorized for issuance but not yet issued.
The fair value of when-issued securities is reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at trade date.
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         On May 29, 2014, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase newly originated auto loans on a
quarterly basis in future periods. For the first year, the agreement requires the purchase of a minimum of $250 million
of outstanding balances to a maximum of $600 million per quarterly period. For quarterly periods after the first year,
the minimum and maximum purchases are $400 million and $600 million, respectively. The agreement automatically
renews until terminated by either party. The Company may cancel the agreement at will with payment of a variable
termination fee. After three years, there is no termination fee.
During 2003, the Company entered into a 25-year agreement to acquire the naming and marketing rights of a baseball
stadium in Pennsylvania. The Company has paid $3 million on this contract for the nine months ended September 30,
2014 and $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 and is obligated to pay $51 million over the remainder of
the contract.
Letters of Credit
Standby letters of credit, both financial and performance, are issued by the Company for its customers. They are used
as conditional guarantees of payment to a third party in the event the customer either fails to make specific payments
(financial) or fails to complete a specific project (performance). Commercial letters of credit are used to facilitate the
import of goods. The commercial letter of credit is used as the method of payment to the Company’s customers’
suppliers. The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of counterparty nonperformance in connection with the
above instruments is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments, net of the value of collateral held.
Standby letters of credit and commercial letters of credit are issued for terms of up to ten years and one year,
respectively.
Generally, letters of credit are collateralized by cash, accounts receivable, inventory or investment securities. Credit
risk associated with letters of credit is considered in determining the appropriate amounts of reserves for unfunded
commitments.
The Company recognizes a liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets representing its obligation to stand ready to
perform over the term of the standby letters of credit in the event that the specified triggering events occur. The
liability for these guarantees at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is $3 million.

Risk Participation Agreements
RPAs are guarantees issued by the Company to other parties for a fee, whereby the Company agrees to participate in
the credit risk of a derivative customer of the other party. Under the terms of these agreements, the “participating bank”
receives a fee from the “lead bank” in exchange for the guarantee of reimbursement if the customer defaults on an
interest rate swap. The interest rate swap is transacted such that any and all exchanges of interest payments (favorable
and unfavorable) are made between the lead bank and the customer. In the event that an early termination of the swap
occurs and the customer is unable to make a required close out payment, the participating bank assumes that
obligation and is required to make this payment.
RPAs where the Company acts as the lead bank are referred to as “participations-out,” in reference to the credit risk
associated with the customer derivatives being transferred out of the Company. Participations-out generally occur
concurrently with the sale of new customer derivatives. RPAs where the Company acts as the participating bank are
referred to as “participations-in,” in reference to the credit risk associated with the counterparty’s derivatives being
assumed by the Company. The Company’s maximum credit exposure is based on its proportionate share of the
settlement amount of the referenced interest rate swap. Settlement amounts are generally calculated based on the fair
value of the swap plus outstanding accrued interest receivables from the customer. The Company’s estimate of the
credit exposure associated with its risk participations-in as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is $16
million and $17 million, respectively. The current amount of credit exposure is spread out over 73 counterparties.
RPAs generally have terms ranging from 1-5 years; however, certain outstanding agreements have terms as long as 11
years.

Other Guarantees
The Company has issued a guarantee to RBS, for a fee, whereby the Company will absorb credit losses related to the
sale of option contracts by RBS to customers of the Company. There were outstanding option contracts with a
notional value of $404 thousand and $2 million at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

61



35

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

62



The following is a summary of outstanding off-balance sheet arrangements:

(in millions) September 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Commitment amount:
Undrawn commitments to extend credit $55,333 $53,987
Financial standby letters of credit 2,498 2,556
Performance letters of credit 94 149
Commercial letters of credit 74 64
Marketing rights 51 54
Risk participation agreements 16 17
Residential mortgage loans sold with recourse 11 13
Total $58,077 $56,840

Contingencies
The Company operates in a legal and regulatory environment that exposes it to potentially significant risks. A certain
amount of litigation ordinarily results from the nature of the Company’s banking and other businesses. The Company
is a party to legal proceedings, including class actions. It is also the subject of investigations, reviews, and regulatory
matters arising out of its normal business operations, which, in some instances, relate to concerns about unfair and/or
deceptive practices and mis-selling of certain products. In addition, the Company engages in discussions with relevant
governmental and regulatory authorities on an ongoing and regular basis regarding various issues, and it is possible
that any issues discussed or identified may result in investigatory or other action being taken. Litigation and regulatory
matters may result in settlements, damages, fines, penalties, public or private censure, increased costs, required
remediation, restrictions on business activities, or other impacts on the Company.
In these disputes and proceedings, the Company contests liability and the amount of damages as appropriate. Given
their complex nature, it may be years before some of these matters are finally resolved. Moreover, before liability can
be reasonably estimated for a claim, numerous legal and factual issues may need to be examined, including through
potentially lengthy discovery and determination of important factual matters, and by addressing novel or unsettled
legal issues relevant to the proceedings in question.
The Company cannot predict with certainty if, how, or when such claims will be resolved or what the eventual
settlement, fine, penalty or other relief, if any, may be, particularly for claims that are at an early stage in their
development or where claimants seek substantial or indeterminate damages. The Company recognizes a provision for
a claim when, in the opinion of management after seeking legal advice, it is probable that a liability exists and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. In many proceedings, however, it is not possible to determine whether
any loss is probable or to estimate the amount of any loss. In each of the matters described below, the Company is
unable to estimate the liability in excess of any provision accrued, if any, that might arise or its effects on the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations or Consolidated Cash Flows in any particular period.
Set out below are descriptions of significant legal matters involving the Company. Based on information currently
available, the advice of legal and other counsel, and established reserves, management believes that the aggregate
liabilities, if any, potentially arising from these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s
unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements.
Consumer Products Matters
The activities of the Company’s bank subsidiaries are subject to extensive laws and regulations concerning unfair or
deceptive acts or practices in connection with customer products. Certain of the bank subsidiaries’ practices with
respect to overdraft protection and other consumer products have not met applicable standards. The bank subsidiaries
have implemented and are continuing to implement changes to improve and bring their practices in accordance with
regulatory guidance.
In April 2013, the bank subsidiaries consented to the issuance of orders by the OCC and the FDIC (the Consent
Orders). In the Consent Orders (which are publicly available and will remain in effect until terminated by the
regulators), the bank subsidiaries neither admitted nor denied the regulators’ findings that they had engaged in
deceptive marketing and implementation of the bank’s overdraft protection program, checking rewards programs, and

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

63



stop-payment process for pre-authorized recurring electronic fund transfers. Under the Consent Orders, the bank
subsidiaries paid a total of $10 million in civil monetary penalties and are required to develop plans to provide
restitution to affected customers (the amount of which is anticipated to be approximately $8 million) to cease and
desist any operations in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and to submit to the regulators
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periodic written progress reports regarding compliance with the Consent Orders. In addition, Citizens Bank, N.A.
agreed to take certain remedial actions to improve its compliance risk management systems and to create a
comprehensive action plan designed to achieve compliance with the Consent Orders. Restitution plans have been
prepared and submitted for approval, and Citizens Bank, N.A. has submitted for approval, and is in the process of
implementing, its action plan for compliance with the Consent Orders, as well as updated policies, procedures, and
programs related to its compliance risk management systems.
The Company's banking subsidiaries have engaged in discussions with regulators regarding, among other things,
certain identity theft and debt cancellation products, certain overdraft fees, signature debit card fees, the bank
subsidiaries' policies and practices with respect to consumer complaints process, identifying and correcting errors in
customer deposits, and the charging of cost-based credit card late payment fees. The banking subsidiaries have paid
restitution regarding some of these practices and it is probable that there will be additional restitution to certain
affected customers in connection with certain of these practices. In addition, the banking subsidiaries could face
formal administrative enforcement actions from their federal supervisory agencies, including the assessment of civil
monetary penalties and restitution, relating to the past practices and policies identified above and other consumer
products, as well as potential civil litigation. The Company does not expect that the aggregate of amounts paid in
connection with these matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s unaudited interim Consolidated
Financial Statements.
Telephone Consumer Protection Act Litigation
The Company is a defendant in a purported class action complaint filed in December 2013 in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of California pursuant to the Telephone Consumer Protection Act. The named
plaintiff purports to represent a "national class" of customers who allegedly received automated calls to their cell
phones from the bank or its agents, without customer consent, in violation of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act.
The Company is vigorously defending this matter.
LIBOR Litigation
The Company is a defendant in lawsuits in which allegations have been made that its parent company, RBS Group,
manipulated U.S. dollar LIBOR to the detriment of the Company's customers. The lawsuits include a purported class
action on behalf of borrowers of the Company whose interest rates were tied to U.S. dollar LIBOR. The plaintiffs in
these cases assert various theories of liability, including fraud, negligent misrepresentation, breach of contract, and
unjust enrichment. The Company is vigorously defending these matters.
Foreclosure-Related Expenses
In May 2013, the civil division of the U.S. Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New York served a subpoena
pursuant to the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 seeking information regarding
home mortgage foreclosure expenses submitted for reimbursement to the United States Department of Housing and
Urban Development, FNMA, or FHLMC. The Company is cooperating with the investigation.
Mortgage Repurchase Demands
The Company is an originator and servicer of residential mortgages and routinely sells such mortgage loans in the
secondary market and to government-sponsored entities. In the context of such sales, the Company makes certain
representations and warranties regarding the characteristics of the underlying loans and, as a result, may be
contractually required to repurchase such loans or indemnify certain parties against losses for certain breaches of those
representations and warranties. Between the start of January 2009 and the end of September 30, 2014, the Company
has received approximately $154 million in repurchase demands and $98 million in indemnification payment requests
in respect of loans originated, for the most part, since 2003. Of those claims presented, $85 million was paid to
repurchase residential mortgage loans, and $33 million was incurred for indemnification costs to make investors
whole. The Company repurchased mortgage loans totaling $22 million and $30 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company incurred indemnification costs of $7 million and $8 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company cannot estimate what the future
level of repurchase demands will be or the Company’s ultimate exposure, and cannot give any assurance that its
historical experience will continue in the future. It is possible that the volume of repurchase demands will increase. In
addition to the above, the Company has since December 2013 been responding to subpoenas issued by the Office of
the Inspector General for the Federal Housing Finance Agency seeking information about loans sold to FNMA and the
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FHLMC from 2003 through 2011.

NOTE 13 - DIVESTITURES AND BRANCH ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE
In June 2014, the Company sold 103 retail branches located in Illinois, including certain customer deposits of $4.8
billion and selected loans of $1.0 billion (primarily middle market, small business, home equity and credit card
balances).  As a result of this transaction, the Company recorded a gain on sale of $288 million consisting of, $286
million related to the deposits, a gain
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on sale of $11 million related to the loans and $9 million loss on sale of other branch assets. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2014, the corresponding interest and fees on these loans was $20 million and interest expense on
deposits was $4 million. The Company has agreed to service the credit card accounts sold to the purchaser
until September 2014. At such time, the Company is expected to complete all exit activities associated with this
transaction. As a result of this transaction, the related assets and liabilities were classified as held for sale as of
December 31, 2013. See Note 17 "Divestitures and Branch Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale" in the Company's
audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company is an indirect subsidiary of RBSG. During the period, the Company entered into certain agreements
with RBS Group that will provide a framework for its ongoing relationship with the RBS Group. Specifically, the
Company entered into the following agreements with RBSG or other affiliates of RBS Group: Separation and
Shareholder Agreement, Registration Rights Agreement, Trade Mark License Agreement, Amended and Restated
Master Services Agreement, and Transitional Services Agreements. These agreements are attached in Part II, Item 6
of this report.
The following is a summary of inter-company borrowed funds:

(dollars in millions) Related Party Interest Rate Maturity Date September 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Subordinated debt RBSG 4.023% October 2024 $333 $—
RBSG 4.153% July 2024 333 —
RBSG 4.691% January 2024 334 334
RBSG 4.771% October 2023 333 333
RBS 5.158% June 2023 333 333

Total interest expense recorded on inter-company subordinated debt was $17 million and $4 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and $42 million and $6 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The Company maintained a $50 million revolving line of credit at December 31, 2013 with RBS. This line of credit
was not drawn upon at December 31, 2013, expired on January 31, 2014, and was not renewed. No interest expense
was incurred on this revolving line of credit for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.
The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements with RBS for the purpose of reducing the Company’s exposure
to interest rate fluctuations. As of September 30, 2014, the total notional amount of swaps outstanding was $5.0
billion which pay fixed rates ranging from 1.78% to 4.30% and receive overnight fed funds rate and one month
LIBOR with maturities from 2016 through 2023. As of December 31, 2013, the total notional amount of swaps
outstanding was $5.5 billion, all of which paid fixed rates ranging from 1.78% to 5.47% and received overnight fed
funds rate with maturities from 2014 through 2023. Included in these balances were $4.0 billion of receive-fixed
swaps that had been executed as of September 30, 2014 and 2013 as part of a new hedging program implemented
during the quarter ended March 31, 2013. The Company recorded net interest expense of $1 million and $31 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and $22 million and $123 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
In order to meet the financing needs of its customers, the Company enters into interest rate swap and cap agreements
with its customers and simultaneously enters into offsetting swap and cap agreements with RBS. The Company earns
a spread equal to the difference between rates charged to the customer and rates charged by RBS. The notional amount
of these interest rate swap and cap agreements outstanding with RBS was $10.6 billion and $13.4 billion at
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The Company recorded income of $5 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2014 and expense of $130 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. For
the three months ended September 30, 2013 the Company recorded expense of $44 million and income of $132
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 within other income.
Also to meet the financing needs of its customers, the Company enters into a variety of foreign currency denominated
products, such as loans, deposits and foreign exchange contracts. To manage the foreign exchange risk associated with
these products, the Company simultaneously enters into offsetting foreign exchange contracts with RBS. The

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

67



Company earns a spread equal to the difference between rates charged to the customer and rates charged by RBS. The
notional amount of foreign exchange contracts outstanding with RBS was $5.0 billion and $4.6 billion at
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The Company recorded income within foreign exchange
and trade finance fees of $59 million and $52 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014,
respectively. The Company recorded expense of $33 million and $20 million for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2013, respectively.
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The Company receives income for providing services and referring customers to RBS. The Company also shares
office space with certain RBS entities for which rent expense and/or income is recorded in occupancy expense. The
total fee income, net of occupancy expense, was $5 million and $7 million for the three months ended September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively, and for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 was $13 million and $19
million, respectively.
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company paid $333 million and $666 million,
respectively, of common stock dividends to RBS as part of the exchange transactions described in "MD&A - Capital"
included elsewhere in this report. Additionally, the Company paid $50 million of regular dividends to RBS for the
three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and $85 million and $145 million of regular
dividends to RBS for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The Company, as a matter of policy and during the ordinary course of business with underwriting terms similar to
those offered to the public, has made loans to directors and executive officers and their immediate families, as well as
their affiliated companies. Such loans amounted to $126 million and $78 million at September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively.

NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
As discussed in Note 1 “Significant Accounting Policies” in the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements,
the Company measures or monitors many of its assets and liabilities on a fair value basis. Fair value is used on a
recurring basis for assets and liabilities for which fair value is the required or elected measurement basis of
accounting. Additionally, fair value is used on a nonrecurring basis to evaluate assets for impairment or for disclosure
purposes. Nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve the application of lower of cost or market accounting
or write-downs of individual assets. The Company also applies the fair value measurement guidance to determine
amounts reported for certain disclosures in this Note for assets and liabilities not required to be reported at fair value
in the financial statements.
Fair Value Option, Residential Mortgage Loans Held for Sale
The Company elected to account for residential mortgage loans held for sale at fair value. Applying fair value
accounting to the residential mortgage loans held for sale better aligns the reported results of the economic changes in
the value of these loans and their related hedge instruments.
The fair value of residential loans held for sale is derived from observable mortgage security prices and includes
adjustments for loan servicing value, agency guarantee fees, and other loan level attributes which are mostly
observable in the marketplace. Credit risk does not significantly impact the valuation since these loans are sold shortly
after origination. Therefore, the Company classifies the residential mortgage loans held for sale in Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy.
The following table summarizes the difference between the aggregate fair value and the aggregate unpaid principal
balance for residential mortgage loans held for sale measured at fair value:

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions) Aggregate
Fair Value

Aggregate
Unpaid
Principal

Aggregate
Fair Value
Less
Aggregate
Unpaid
Principal

Aggregate
Fair Value

Aggregate
Unpaid
Principal

Aggregate
Fair Value
Less
Aggregate
Unpaid
Principal

Residential mortgage loans held for sale, at
fair value $189 $183 $6 $176 $173 $3

The election of the fair value option for financial assets and financial liabilities is optional and irrevocable. The loans
accounted for under the fair value option are initially measured at fair value (i.e., acquisition cost) when the financial
asset is acquired. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in current earnings. The Company recognized
mortgage banking noninterest income of ($2) million and $10 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively, and $3 million and ($26) million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
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respectively. Interest income on residential mortgage loans held for sale is calculated based on the contractual interest
rate of the loan and is recorded in interest income.

Fair Value Option, Commercial and Commercial Real Estate Loans Held for Sale
The Company elected to account for certain commercial and commercial real estate loans held for sale at fair value.
These loans are managed by a commercial secondary loan desk that provides liquidity to banks, finance companies
and institutional
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investors. Applying fair value accounting to this portfolio is appropriate because the Company holds these loans with
the intent to sell within short term periods.
The fair value of commercial and commercial real estate loans held for sale is estimated using observable prices of
identical or similar loans that transact in the marketplace. In addition, the Company uses external pricing services that
provide estimates of fair values based on quotes from various dealers transacting in the market, sector curves or
benchmarking techniques. Therefore, the Company classifies the commercial and commercial real estate loans
managed by the commercial secondary loan desk in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy given the observable market
inputs.
The following table summarizes the difference between the aggregate fair value and the aggregate unpaid principal
balance for commercial and commercial real estate loans held for sale measured at fair value:

September 30, 2014

(in millions) Aggregate Fair
Value

Aggregate
Unpaid
Principal

Aggregate Fair
Value Less
Aggregate
Unpaid
Principal

Commercial and commercial real estate loans held for sale, at fair
value $16 $16 $—

There were no loans in this portfolio that were 90 days or more past due or nonaccruing as of September 30, 2014.
The loans accounted for under the fair value option are initially measured at fair value when the financial asset is
recognized. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in current earnings. Since all loans in the Company's
commercial trading portfolio consist of floating rate obligations, all changes in fair value were due to changes in credit
risk. Such credit-related fair value changes may include observed changes in overall credit spreads and/or changes to
the creditworthiness of an individual borrower.
Interest income on commercial and commercial real estate loans held for sale is calculated based on the contractual
interest rate of the loan and is recorded in interest income.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
The Company utilizes a variety of valuation techniques to measure its assets and liabilities at fair value. Following is a
description of valuation methodologies used for significant assets and liabilities carried on the balance sheet at fair
value on a recurring basis:
Securities AFS
The fair value of securities classified as AFS is based upon quoted prices, if available. Where observable quoted prices
are available in an active market, securities are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. Classes of instruments
that are valued using this market approach include debt securities issued by the U.S. Treasury. If quoted market prices
are not available, the fair value for the security is estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with
similar characteristics or discounted cash flows. These instruments are classified as Level 2 because they currently
trade in active markets and the inputs to the valuations are observable. The pricing models used to value securities
generally begin with market prices (or rates) for similar instruments and make adjustments based on the unique
characteristics of the instrument being valued. These adjustments reflect assumptions made regarding the sensitivity of
each security’s value to changes in interest rates and prepayment speeds. Classes of instruments that are valued using
this market approach include residential and commercial CMOs, specified pool mortgage “pass-through” securities and
other debt securities issued by U.S. government-sponsored entities and state and political subdivisions.
A significant majority of the Company’s Level 1 and 2 securities are priced using an external pricing service. The
Company verifies the accuracy of the pricing provided by its primary outside pricing service on a quarterly basis. This
process involves using a secondary external vendor to provide valuations for the Company’s securities portfolio for
comparison purposes. Any securities with discrepancies beyond a certain threshold are researched and, if necessary,
valued by an independent outside broker.
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In certain cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the valuation model, securities are
classified as Level 3.
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Residential loans held for sale
See the "Fair Value Option - Residential Mortgage Loans Held for Sale" discussion above.
Commercial loans held for sale
See the "Fair Value Option Commercial and Commercial Real Estate Loans Held for Sale" discussion above.
Derivatives
The majority of the Company’s derivatives portfolio is comprised of “plain vanilla” interest rate swaps, which are traded
in over-the-counter markets where quoted market prices are not readily available. For these interest rate derivatives,
fair value is determined utilizing models that use primarily market observable inputs, such as swap rates and yield
curves. The pricing models used to value interest rate swaps calculate the sum of each instrument’s fixed and variable
cash flows, which are then discounted using an appropriate yield curve (i.e., LIBOR or OIS curve) to arrive at the fair
value of each swap. The pricing models do not contain a high level of subjectivity as the methodologies used do not
require significant judgment. The Company also considers certain adjustments to the modeled price which market
participants would make when pricing each instrument, including a credit valuation adjustment that reflects the credit
quality of the swap counterparty. The Company incorporates the effect of exposure to a particular counterparty’s credit
by netting its derivative contracts with the collateral available and calculating a credit valuation adjustment on the
basis of the net position with the counterparty where permitted. The determination of this adjustment requires
judgment on behalf of Company management; however, the total amount of this portfolio-level adjustment is not
material to the total fair value of the interest rate swaps in their entirety. Therefore, interest rate swaps are classified as
Level 2 in the valuation hierarchy.
The Company’s other derivatives include foreign exchange contracts. Fair value of foreign exchange derivatives uses
the mid-point of daily quoted currency spot prices. A valuation model estimates fair value based on the quoted spot
rates together with interest rate yield curves and forward currency rates. Since all of these inputs are observable in the
market, foreign exchange derivatives are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
Venture capital investments
The Company values its venture capital private equity fund investments based on its capital invested in each fund,
which is adjusted by management each quarter, if necessary, to arrive at its estimate of fair value. Adjustments for a
fund’s underlying investments may be based upon comparisons to public companies, industry benchmarks, current
financing round pricing, earnings multiples of comparable companies, current operating performance and future
expectations, or third-party valuations. Since the inputs to the valuation are difficult to independently corroborate in
the marketplace, and involve a significant degree of management judgment, venture capital investments are classified
as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
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The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value, including gross derivative assets and
liabilities on a recurring basis at September 30, 2014:
(in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Securities available for sale:
Mortgage-backed securities $18,616 $— $18,616 $—
State and political subdivisions 10 — 10 —
Equity securities 25 8 17 —
U.S. Treasury 15 15 — —
Total securities available for sale 18,666 23 18,643 —
Residential loans held for sale 189 — 189 —
Commercial and commercial real estate
loans held for sale 16 — 16 —

Total loans held for sale 205 — 205 —
Derivative assets:
Interest rate swaps 563 — 563 —
Foreign exchange contracts 137 — 137 —
Other contracts 6 — 6 —
Total derivative assets 706 — 706 —
Venture capital investments 6 — — 6
Total assets $19,583 $23 $19,554 $6
Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $655 $— $655 $—
Foreign exchange contracts 132 — 132 —
Other contracts 10 — 10 —
Total derivative liabilities 797 — 797 —
Total liabilities $797 $— $797 $—
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The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value including gross derivative assets and
liabilities on a recurring basis at December 31, 2013:
(in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Securities available for sale:
Mortgage-backed securities $15,945 $— $15,945 $—
State and political subdivisions 10 — 10 —
Equity securities 25 8 17 —
U.S. Treasury 15 15 — —
Total securities available for sale 15,995 23 15,972 —
Residential loans held for sale 176 — 176 —
Derivative assets:
Interest rate swaps 677 — 677 —
Foreign exchange contracts 94 — 94 —
Other contracts 7 — 7 —
Total derivative assets 778 — 778 —
Venture capital investments 5 — — 5
Total assets $16,954 $23 $16,926 $5
Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $970 $— $970 $—
Foreign exchange contracts 87 — 87 —
Other contracts 10 — 10 —
Total derivative liabilities 1,067 — 1,067 —
Total liabilities $1,067 $— $1,067 $—

The changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized as follows:
Nine Months Ended September
30,

(in millions) 2014 2013
Balance as of January 1, $5 $6
Purchases, issuances, sales and settlements:
Sales — (4 )
Settlements — 3
Other net gains 1 —
Balance as of period end $6 $5
Net unrealized gain (loss) included in net income for the period relating to assets
held at period end $— $—

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.
Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements
The following valuation techniques are utilized to measure significant assets for which the Company utilizes fair value
on a nonrecurring basis:
Impaired Loans
The carrying amount of collateral-dependent impaired loans is compared to the appraised value of the collateral less
costs to dispose and is classified as Level 2. Any excess of carrying amount over the appraised value is charged to the
ALLL.
MSRs
MSRs do not trade in an active market with readily observable prices. MSRs are classified as Level 3 since the
valuation methodology utilizes significant unobservable inputs. At September 30, 2014 the fair value is calculated
using the discounted cash flow model, the model which uses assumptions, including weighted average life of 5.2 years
(range of 1.7 - 7.0 years), weighted
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average constant prepayment rate of 12.2% (range of 9.8% - 22.4%) and weighted average discount rate of 10.3%
(range of 9.6% - 12.6%). At December 31, 2013 the fair value is calculated using the discounted cash flow model, the
model which uses assumptions, including weighted average life of 5.4 years (range of 1.8 - 7.4 years), weighted
average constant prepayment rate of 13% (range of 9.4% - 41.5%) and weighted average discount rate of 10.8%
(range of 10.2% - 13.1%). Refer to Note 6 "Mortgage Banking" in the Company's unaudited interim Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information as well as Note 1 "Significant Accounting
Policies" and Note 9 "Mortgage Banking" in the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements.
Foreclosed assets
Foreclosed assets consist primarily of residential properties. Foreclosed assets are carried at the lower of carrying
value or fair value less costs to dispose. Fair value is based upon independent market prices or appraised values of the
collateral and is classified as Level 2.
Goodwill
Goodwill is valued using unobservable inputs and is classified as Level 3. Fair value is calculated using the present
value of estimated future earnings (discounted cash flow method). On a quarterly basis, the Company assesses
whether or not impairment indicators are present.
The Company monitored events and circumstances during the first half of 2014 and did not observe any factors that
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of one or more reporting units below its respective carrying value.
Accordingly, goodwill was not tested for impairment during the first half of 2014. For additional information on the
Company’s goodwill impairment testing and the most recent goodwill impairment test, see Note 5 "Goodwill" to the
Company's unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information as
well as Note 1 “Significant Accounting Policies” and Note 5 "Goodwill" included in the Company’s audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.
The following table presents gains (losses) on assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis and
recorded in earnings:

Three Months Ended September
30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Impaired collateral-dependent loans(1) ($5 ) ($56 ) ($99 ) ($114 )
MSRs(2) 5 3 8 42
Foreclosed assets(3) 1 1 2 3
Goodwill impairment(4) — — — (4,435 )

The following tables present assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis:
September 30, 2014

(in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Impaired collateral-dependent loans(1) $103 $— $103 $—
MSRs(2) 174 — — 174
Foreclosed assets(3) 40 — 40 —
Goodwill(4) 6,876 — — 6,876

December 31, 2013
(in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Impaired collateral-dependent loans(1) $74 $— $74 $—
MSRs(2) 185 — — 185
Foreclosed assets(3) 49 — 49 —
Goodwill(4) 6,876 — — 6,876

(1) During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Company recorded impairment charges of $5
million and $99 million, respectively. The impairment charges included current charges from $144 million of
collateral-dependent loans which have been written down to $103 million as of September 30, 2014 and other
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collateral-dependent loans that have been sold or refinanced and are no longer on the Company's balance sheet as of
September 30,2014.
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During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company recorded impairment charges of $56
million and $114 million, respectively. The impairment charges include current charges from $209 million of
collateral-dependent loans which have been written down to $113 million as of September 30, 2013 and other
collateral-dependent loans that have been sold or refinanced and are no longer on the Company's balance sheet as of
September 30, 2013.

(2) In the first nine months of 2014, MSRs totaling $208 million were evaluated for impairment and written down to
$174 million, resulting in an impairment recapture of $8 million and a total cumulative valuation allowance of $15
million. In the first nine months of 2013, MSRs totaling $215 million were evaluated for impairment and written
down to $185 million, resulting in an impairment (charge) of $42 million and a total cumulative valuation allowance
of $28 million.

(3) In the first nine months of 2014, foreclosed real estate accounted for at the lower of cost or fair value less costs to
sell was written down to fair value of $40 million, resulting in impairment charges of $2 million. In the year ended
2013, foreclosed real estate accounted for at the lower of cost or fair value less costs to sell was written down to fair
value of $49 million, resulting in an impairment charge of $4 million.

(4) In the year ended 2013, Goodwill totaling $11.3 billion was written down to its implied fair value of $6.9 billion,
resulting in an impairment charge of $4.4 billion.

Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Following is a description of valuation methodologies used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments for
disclosure purposes (these instruments are not recorded in the financial statements at fair value):
Loans and leases
For loans and leases not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis that are not accounted for as collateral-dependent
impaired loans, fair value is estimated by using one of two methods: a discounted cash flow method or a securitization
method. The discounted cash flow method involves discounting the expected future cash flows using current rates
which a market participant would likely use to value similar pools of loans. Inputs used in this method include
observable information such as contractual cash flows (net of servicing cost) and unobservable information such as
estimated prepayment speeds, credit loss exposures, and discount rates. The securitization method involves utilizing
market securitization data to value the assets as if a securitization transaction had been executed. Inputs used include
observable market-based MBS data and pricing adjustments based on unobservable data reflecting the liquidity risk,
credit loss exposure and other characteristics of the underlying loans. The internal risk-weighted balances of loans are
grouped by product type for purposes of these estimated valuations. For nonaccruing loans, fair value is estimated by
discounting management’s estimate of future cash flows with a discount rate commensurate with the risk associated
with such assets. Fair value of collateral-dependent loans is primarily based on the appraised value of the collateral.
Loans held for sale
Balances are loans that were transferred to loans held for sale that are reported at book value.
Securities HTM
The fair value of securities classified as HTM is estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with
similar characteristics or discounted cash flow. The pricing models used to value these securities generally begin with
market prices (or rates) for similar instruments and make adjustments based on the unique characteristics of the
instrument being valued. These adjustments reflect assumptions made regarding the sensitivity of each security’s value
to changes in interest rates and prepayment speeds.
Other investment securities
The cost basis carrying value of other investment securities, such as FHLB stock and FRB stock, is assumed to
approximate the fair value of the securities. As a member of the FHLB and FRB, the Company is required to hold
FHLB and FRB stock. The stock can be sold only to the FHLB and FRB upon termination of membership, or
redeemed at the FHLB’s or FRB’s sole discretion.
Deposits
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The fair value of demand deposits, checking with interest accounts, regular savings and money market accounts is the
amount payable on demand at the balance sheet date. The fair value of term deposits is estimated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.
Deposits held for sale
Balances are deposits that were transferred to held for sale that are reported at book value.
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase, other short-term borrowed funds, and
long-term borrowed funds
Rates currently available to the Company for debt of similar terms and remaining maturities are used to discount the
expected cash flows of existing debt.
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The following table is a summary of fair value for financial instruments not recorded at fair value in the unaudited
interim Consolidated Financial Statements. The carrying amounts in the following table are recorded in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets under the indicated captions:

September 30, 2014
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(in millions) Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Financial Assets:
Loans and leases $90,749 $91,227 $— $— $103 $103 $90,646 $91,124
Other loans held for sale 3 3 — — — — 3 3
Securities held to maturity 5,289 5,278 — — 5,289 5,278 — —
Other investment securities 893 893 — — 893 893 — —
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits 93,463 93,791 — — 93,463 93,791 — —
Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

5,184 7,310 — — 5,184 7,310 — —

Other short-term borrowed funds 6,715 6,710 — — 6,715 6,710 — —
Long-term borrowed funds 2,062 2,060 — — 2,062 2,060 — —

December 31, 2013
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(in millions) Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Financial Assets:
Loans and leases $85,859 $85,724 $— $— $74 $74 $85,785 $85,650
Other loans held for sale 1,078 1,078 — — — — 1,078 1,078
Securities held to maturity 4,315 4,257 — — 4,315 4,257 — —
Other investment securities 935 935 — — 935 935 — —
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits 86,903 86,907 — — 86,903 86,907 — —
Deposits held for sale 5,277 5,277 — — 5,277 5,277 — —
Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

4,791 4,791 — — 4,791 4,791 — —

Other short-term borrowed funds 2,251 2,249 — — 2,251 2,249 — —
Long-term borrowed funds 1,405 1,404 — — 1,405 1,404 — —

NOTE 16 - REGULATORY MATTERS
As a BHC, the Company is subject to regulation and supervision by the FRB. The primary subsidiaries of Citizens are
its two insured depository institutions CBNA, a national banking association whose primary federal regulator is the
OCC, and CBPA, a Pennsylvania-chartered savings bank regulated by the Department of Banking of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and supervised by the FDIC as its primary federal regulator. Under the regulatory
capital adequacy guidelines of the FDICIA, the Company and its banking subsidiaries must meet specific capital
requirements. These requirements are expressed in terms of the following ratios: (1) Total Risk-Based Capital (total
capital/risk-weighted on- and off-balance sheet assets); (2) Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital (Tier 1 capital/risk-weighted on-
and off-balance sheet assets); and (3) Tier 1 Leverage (Tier 1 capital/adjusted average quarterly assets). To meet the
regulatory capital requirements, the Company and its banking subsidiaries must maintain minimum Total Risk-Based
Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage ratios. In addition, the Company must not be subject to a
written agreement, order or capital directive with any of its regulators. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements
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can result in the initiation of certain actions that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The following table presents capital and capital ratio information:
FDIC Requirements

Actual Minimum Capital
Adequacy

Classification as Well
Capitalized

(dollars in millions) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of September 30, 2014
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets $16,612 16.1 % $8,257 8.0 % $10,321 10.0 %
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets 13,330 12.9 4,128 4.0 6,192 6.0
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets
(Leverage) 13,330 10.9 4,901 4.0 6,126 5.0

As of December 31, 2013
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets $15,885 16.1 % $7,891 8.0 % $9,863 10.0 %
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets 13,301 13.5 3,945 4.0 5,918 6.0
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets
(Leverage) 13,301 11.6 4,577 4.0 5,721 5.0

In accordance with federal and state banking regulations, dividends paid by the Company’s banking subsidiaries to the
Company itself are generally limited to the retained earnings of the respective banking subsidiaries unless specifically
approved by the appropriate bank regulator. The Company declared and paid RBS total common stock dividends of
$751 million, $811 million and $1.2 billion as of September 30, 2014, September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2013,
respectively.
The earnings impact of goodwill impairment recognized by CBNA has put the bank subsidiary in the position of
having to request specific approval from the OCC before executing capital distributions to its parent, Citizens. This
requirement will be in place through the fourth quarter of 2015. As of September 30, 2014, the unconsolidated BHC
had liquid assets in excess of $501 million compared to an annual interest burden on existing subordinated debt of
approximately $91 million on a non-consolidated basis.
The OCC recently determined that CBNA no longer meets both conditions necessary to own a financial subsidiary.
CBNA must be both well capitalized and well managed to own a financial subsidiary. A financial subsidiary is
permitted to engage in a broader range of activities, similar to those of a financial holding company, than those
permissible for a national bank. CBNA has two financial subsidiaries, Citizens Securities, Inc., a registered
broker-dealer, and RBS Citizens Insurance Agency, Inc., a dormant entity, although it continues to collect
commissions on certain outstanding policies. CBNA has entered into an agreement with the OCC (the "OCC
Agreement") pursuant to which it must develop a remediation plan, which must be submitted to the OCC, setting forth
the specific actions it will take to bring itself back into compliance with the conditions to own a financial subsidiary
and the schedule for achieving that objective. Until CBNA satisfactorily addresses the deficiencies, CBNA may not
consolidate its assets and liabilities with those of the financial subsidiaries for purposes of determining and reporting
regulatory capital. In addition, CBNA will be subject to restrictions on its ability to acquire control or hold an interest
in any new financial subsidiary and to commence new activities in any existing financial subsidiary, without the prior
consent of the OCC. If CBNA fails to remediate the deficiencies within 180 days from March 13, 2014, or such longer
period as the OCC may permit, it may have to divest itself of its financial subsidiaries and comply with any additional
limitations or conditions on its conduct as the OCC may impose. CBNA has implemented a comprehensive
enterprise-wide program that seeks to address these deficiencies.

NOTE 17 - EXIT COSTS AND RESTRUCTURING RESERVES
In 2014, the Company began the implementation of a restructuring initiative designed to achieve operating
efficiencies and reduce expense growth. As a result of this program, the Company expects to incur total restructuring
costs of approximately $121 million through December 31, 2015, consisting of $41 million of employee
compensation, $40 million of facilities costs and $40 million of other costs, primarily consulting and technology
services. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Company incurred $90 million of restructuring costs,
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consisting of $41 million of employee compensation reported in salaries and employee benefits, $12 million of
facilities costs (including $6 million of building impairment) reported in occupancy, $26 million reported in outside
services, and $11 million in other operating expenses.
In 2014, as a result of the sale of retail branches located in Illinois (see Note 13 "Divestitures and Branch Assets and
Liabilities Held for Sale" to the Company's unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I,
Item 1 — Financial Information for further information), the Company incurred total costs of approximately $17 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, consisting of $3 million of employee compensation reported in
salaries and employee benefits, $3
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million of fixed assets expenses reported in equipment, $4 million reported in outside services and $7 million reported
in other operating expenses.
For segment reporting all of these restructuring costs are reported within Other. See Note 19 "Business Segments" to
the Company's unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information
for further information.
The following table includes the activity in the exit costs and restructuring reserves:

(in millions)
Salaries &
Employee
Benefits

Occupancy &
Equipment Other Total

Reserve balance as of December 31, 2012 $3 $27 $— $30
Additions 6 22 3 31
Reversals (1) (4) — (5)
Utilization (6) (21) (3) (30)
Reserve balance as of December 31, 2013 2 24 — 26
Additions 43 17 48 108
Reversals (1) (3) — (4)
Utilization (10) (18) (28) (56)
Reserve balance as of September 30, 2014 $34 $20 $20 $74

NOTE 18 - RECLASSIFICATIONS OUT OF ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The following tables present the changes in the balances, net of taxes, of each component of AOCI:

(in millions)
Net Unrealized
Gains (Losses)
on Derivatives

Net Unrealized
Gains (Losses)
on Securities

Defined
Benefit
Pension
Plans

Total AOCI

Balance at December 31, 2012 ($240 ) $306 ($378 ) ($312 )
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (121 ) (184 ) — (305 )
Other-than-temporary impairment not recognized in
earnings on securities — (35 ) — (35 )

Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive
income 79 (71 ) 5 13

Net other comprehensive (loss) income (42 ) (290 ) 5 (327 )
Balance at September 30, 2013 ($282 ) $16 ($373 ) ($639 )

(in millions)
Net Unrealized
Gains (Losses)
on Derivatives

Net Unrealized
Gains (Losses)
on Securities

Defined
Benefit
Pension
Plans

Total AOCI

Balance at December 31, 2013 ($298 ) ($91 ) ($259 ) ($648 )
Other comprehensive income before
reclassifications 137 127 — 264

Other-than-temporary impairment not recognized in
earnings on securities — (22 ) — (22 )

Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive
income 16 (13 ) (32 ) (29 )

Net other comprehensive income 153 92 (32 ) 213
Balance at September 30, 2014 ($145 ) $1 ($291 ) ($435 )
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The following table reports the amounts reclassified out of each component of OCI and into the Consolidated
Statements of Operations:

Three Months
Ended September
30,

Nine Months
Ended September
30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Details about AOCI Components Amount Reclassified from AOCI
Affected Line Item in the
Consolidated Statements of
Operations

Reclassification adjustment for net
derivative gains (losses) included in net
income (loss):

$18 $18 $54 $38 Interest income

(23 ) (48 ) (79 ) (160 ) Interest expense
— — — (2 ) Other income

(5 ) (30 ) (25 ) (124 ) Income (loss) before income taxexpense (benefit)
(2 ) (11 ) (9 ) (45 ) Income tax expense (benefit)
($3 ) ($19 ) ($16 ) ($79 ) Net income (loss)

Reclassification of net securities gains
(losses) to net income (loss): $2 $25 $27 $119 Securities gains, net

(1 ) (3 ) (7 ) (7 ) Net impairment losses recognizedin earnings

1 22 20 112 Income (loss) before income tax
expense (benefit)

— 7 7 41 Income tax expense (benefit)
$1 $15 $13 $71 Net income (loss)

Reclassification of changes related to
the employee benefit plan: $52 ($3 ) $49 ($9 ) Salaries and employee benefits

52 (3 ) 49 (9 ) Income (loss) before income taxexpense (benefit)
18 (1 ) 17 (4 ) Income tax expense (benefit)
$34 ($2 ) $32 ($5 ) Net income (loss)

Total reclassification losses $32 ($6 ) $29 ($13 ) Net income (loss)

The following table presents the effects to net income of the amounts reclassified out of OCI:
Three Months Ended September
30,

Nine Months Ended September
30,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income (includes ($5), ($30), ($25)
and ($122) of AOCI reclassifications, respectively) $820 $770 $2,461 $2,279

Provision for credit losses 77 145 247 347
Noninterest income (includes $1, $22, $20 and
$110 of AOCI reclassifications, respectively) 341 383 1,339 1,253

Noninterest expense (includes ($52), $3, ($49) and
$9 of AOCI reclassifications, respectively) 810 788 2,568 6,861

Income before income tax expense (benefit) 274 220 985 (3,676 )
Income tax expense (benefit) (includes $16, ($5),
$15 and ($8) income tax net expense and (benefit)
from reclassification items, respectively)

85 76 317 (98 )

Net income (loss) $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
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NOTE 19 - BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The Company is managed by its CEO on a divisional basis. The Company’s two business segments are Consumer
Banking and Commercial Banking. The business segments are determined based on the products and services
provided, or the type of customer served. Each segment has a Vice Chairman who reports directly to the CEO. The
CEO has final authority over resource allocation decisions and performance assessment. The business segments reflect
this management structure and the manner in which financial information is currently evaluated by the CEO.
Non-segment operations are classified as Other, which includes
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corporate functions, the Treasury function, the securities portfolio, wholesale funding activities, intangible assets,
Community Development, Non-Core assets, and other unallocated assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
Reportable Segments
Segment results are determined based upon the Company’s management reporting system, which assigns balance sheet
and income statement items to each of the business segments. The process is designed around the Company’s
organizational and management structure and, accordingly, the results derived are not necessarily comparable with
similar information published by other financial institutions. A description of each reportable segment and table of
financial results is presented below:
Consumer Banking
The Consumer Banking segment focuses on retail customers and small businesses with annual revenues of up to $25
million. It offers traditional banking products and services, including checking, savings, home loans, student loans,
credit cards, business loans and financial management services. It also operates an indirect auto financing business,
providing financing for both new and used vehicles through auto dealerships. The segment’s distribution channels
include a branch network, ATMs and a work force of experienced specialists ranging from financial consultants,
mortgage loan officers and business banking officers to private bankers.
Commercial Banking
The Commercial Banking segment primarily targets companies with annual revenues from $25 million to $2.5 billion
and provides a full complement of financial products and solutions, including loans, leases, trade financing, deposits,
cash management, foreign exchange, interest rate risk management, corporate finance and capital markets advisory
capabilities. It focuses on small and middle-market companies and has dedicated teams with industry expertise in
government banking, not-for-profit, healthcare, technology, asset finance, franchise finance, asset-based lending,
commercial real estate, private equity and sponsor finance. While the segment’s business development efforts are
predominantly focused on the Company's twelve-state core footprint, some of its specialized industry businesses also
operate selectively on a national basis (such as healthcare, asset finance and franchise finance). Commercial Banking
is organized by teams that target different client segments. A key component of the segment’s growth strategy is to
expand its loan portfolio by originating high-quality commercial loans, which produce revenues consistent with its
financial objectives and complies with its conservative credit policies. Commercial underwriting is driven by cash
flow analysis supported by collateral analysis and review. The commercial lending teams offer a wide range of
commercial loan products, including commercial real estate loans; working capital loans and lines of credit; demand,
term and time loans; and equipment, inventory and accounts receivable financing.
Non-segment Operations
Other
In addition to non-segment operations, Other includes certain reconciling items in order to translate the segment
results that are based on management accounting practices into consolidated results. For example, Other includes
goodwill and the associated pre-tax $4.4 billion goodwill impairment charge recorded in 2013.

As of and for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

(in millions) Consumer
Banking

Commercial
Banking Other Consolidated

Net interest income $532 $270 $18 $820
Noninterest income 226 104 11 341
Total revenue 758 374 29 1,161
Noninterest expense 609 162 39 810
Profit (loss) before provision for credit losses 149 212 (10 ) 351
Provision for credit losses 66 — 11 77
Income (loss) before income tax expense
(benefit) 83 212 (21 ) 274

Income tax expense (benefit) 29 73 (17 ) 85
Net income (loss) $54 $139 ($4 ) $189
Total Average Assets $49,012 $38,854 $40,825 $128,691
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As of and for the Three months ended September 30, 2013

(in millions) Consumer
Banking

Commercial
Banking Other Consolidated

Net interest income (expense) $543 $263 ($36 ) $770
Noninterest income 246 93 44 383
Total revenue 789 356 8 1,153
Noninterest expense 622 156 10 788
Profit (loss) before provision for credit losses 167 200 (2 ) 365
Provision for credit losses 87 3 55 145
Income (loss) before income tax expense
(benefit) 80 197 (57 ) 220

Income tax expense (benefit) 28 70 (22 ) 76
Net income (loss) $52 $127 ($35 ) $144
Total Average Assets $46,169 $35,019 $36,198 $117,386

As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

(in millions) Consumer
Banking

Commercial
Banking Other Consolidated

Net interest income $1,615 $790 $56 $2,461
Noninterest income 681 318 340 1,339
Total revenue 2,296 1,108 396 3,800
Noninterest expense 1,902 472 194 2,568
Profit before provision for credit losses 394 636 202 1,232
Provision for credit losses 195 (7 ) 59 247
Income before income tax expense 199 643 143 985
Income tax expense 69 222 26 317
Net income $130 $421 $117 $668
Total Average Assets $48,398 $37,951 $40,249 $126,598

As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013

(in millions) Consumer
Banking

Commercial
Banking Other Consolidated

Net interest income (expense) $1,633 $771 ($125 ) $2,279
Noninterest income 790 284 179 1,253
Total revenue 2,423 1,055 54 3,532
Noninterest expense 1,884 471 4,506 6,861
Profit (loss) before provision for credit losses 539 584 (4,452 ) (3,329 )
Provision for credit losses 243 (21 ) 125 347
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 296 605 (4,577 ) (3,676 )
Income tax expense (benefit) 104 214 (416 ) (98 )
Net income (loss) $192 $391 ($4,161 ) ($3,578 )
Total Average Assets $46,546 $34,938 $39,542 $121,026
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Management accounting practices utilized by the Company as the basis for presentation for segment results include
the following:

FTP adjustments 

The Company utilizes an FTP system to eliminate the effect of interest rate risk from the segments’ net interest income
because such risk is centrally managed within the Treasury function. The FTP system credits (or charges) the
segments with the economic value of the funds created (or used) by the segments. The FTP system provides a funds
credit for sources of funds and a funds charge for the use of funds by each segment. The sum of the interest
income/expense and FTP charges/credits for each segment is its designated net interest income. The variance between
the Company’s cumulative FTP charges and cumulative FTP credits is offset in Other.

Provision for credit losses allocations

Provision for credit losses is allocated to each business segment based on actual net charge-offs that have been
recognized by the business segment. The difference between the consolidated provision for credit losses and the
business segments’ net charge-offs is reflected in Other.

Income tax allocations

Income taxes are assessed to each line of business at a standard tax rate with the residual tax expense or benefit to
arrive at the consolidated effective tax rate included in Other.

Expense allocations 

Noninterest expenses incurred by centrally managed operations or business lines that directly support another business
line’s operations are charged to the applicable business line based on its utilization of those services.

Goodwill 

For impairment testing purposes, the Company allocates goodwill to its Consumer Banking and Commercial Banking
reporting units. For management reporting purposes, the Company presents the goodwill balance (and any related
impairment charges) in Other.

Substantially all revenues generated and long-lived assets held by the Company’s business segments are derived from
clients that reside in the United States. Neither business segment earns revenue from a single external customer that
represents 10 percent or more of the Company’s total revenues.

NOTE 20 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Equity Grants Prior to the IPO
Prior to the Company's IPO, RBS Group granted stock-based compensation awards to employees of the Company
pursuant to its various long-term incentive plans, which are administered by the Performance and Remuneration
Committee of the RBSG Board of Directors. Below is a summary of those awards. All stock-based compensation
awards granted to Company employees have been historically settled in RBSG shares. Effective as of the IPO, no
stock-based compensation awards in respect of RBSG shares will be granted to Company employees.  
Restricted Stock Units
A restricted stock unit is the right to receive shares of stock on a future date, which may be subject to time-based
vesting conditions and/or performance-based vesting conditions. Time-based restricted stock units granted historically
have generally become vested ratably over a three-year period. Performance-based restricted stock units granted
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historically have generally become vested at the end of a three-year performance period, depending on the level of
performance achieved during such period as compared to specified RBS Group, divisional and/or functional
performance guideposts and subject to the further adjustment at the discretion of the Performance and Remuneration
Committee of the RBSG Board of Directors.
The fair value of each award is determined on the grant date. All awards (whether they become vested in one
increment or ratable increments) are expensed on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. With respect to
performance-based awards, over the performance and requisite service period (i.e., vesting period) of the award, the
compensation expense and the number of shares of stock expected to be issued are adjusted upward or downward
based upon the probability of achievement of performance. Once vesting has occurred, the related compensation cost
recognized as expense is based on actual performance and the number of shares actually issued.
Special IPO Awards
In March 2014, RBS Group granted special IPO awards to certain Citizens employees. These awards were granted
half in the form of restricted stock units in respect of RBSG shares and half as a fixed convertible bond. The special
IPO awards are scheduled to vest 50% in March 2016 and 50% in March 2017, subject to certain conditions. Pursuant
to their terms, upon the closing of the Company's IPO, these awards were converted into Company restricted stock
units and the performance condition was met; however, following the offering these awards remain subject to the
original vesting schedule (50% in March 2016 and 50% in March 2017) and other original terms and conditions.
Equity Award Conversion
In conjunction with the Company's IPO, any restricted stock units granted by RBS Group to Company employees that
were unvested at the time of the offering and the bond portion of special IPO awards were converted into equity-based
awards in respect of Company common stock. Converted awards are governed by the Citizens Financial Group, Inc.
Converted Equity 2010
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Deferral Plan and the Citizens Financial Group, Inc. Converted Equity 2010 Long Term Incentive Plan (collectively,
the "Converted Equity Plans") and are generally subject to the same terms and conditions as prior to conversion.
However, when the awards become vested and are settled in accordance with their terms, grantees will receive shares
of Company common stock. Following the offering, no additional awards were granted under the Converted Equity
Plans.
The number of shares of Company common stock underlying converted awards was determined by dividing (A) the
product of (x) the maximum number of RBSG shares underlying the awards outstanding as of the closing of the
offering and (y) the average of the closing prices of RBSG shares on each of the 30 London Stock Exchange dealing
days immediately prior to the pricing date of the offering (such 30-day period, the “Conversion Period”), converted into
U.S. Dollars using the average British Pound to U.S. Dollar currency rate over the Conversion Period, by (B) the price
per share of Company common stock on the pricing date of the offering. The bond portion of the special IPO awards
was converted by dividing the bond value by the price per share of Company common stock on the pricing date of the
offering.
The Company awarded 9,627,635 and 6,363,919 RBSG shares to employees during the nine months ended September
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The grant date fair value of the shares was $53 million and $30 million for the
awards granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Grant date fair value for all
RBSG awards is estimated using the fair value of RBSG shares on grant date. In September 2014, 19,055,349 of
RBSG share awards were converted to 5,158,928 Citizens share awards.  The difference between the fair value of the
RBSG restricted share units immediately preceding the conversion and the fair value of the Company equity-based
awards granted was not material. The bond portions of the Special IPO awards were converted to 524,783 Citizens
share awards. Total unvested share awards at September 30, 2014 were 5,706,624; this includes the Directors shares
discussed below.
For the three months ended September 30, 2014, compensation expense related to share-based plans was $10 million
compared to $9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013. For the nine months ended September 30,
2014, compensation expense related to share-based plans was $29 million compared to $24 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013.
Employee Share Plans Following the IPO
Omnibus Incentive Plan
In connection with the offering, the Company adopted the Citizens Financial Group, Inc. 2014 Omnibus Incentive
Plan. This plan permits the Company to grant a variety of awards to employees and service providers. No awards have
been granted under this plan to date.
Director Compensation Plan
In connection with the offering, the Company adopted the 2014 Non-Employee Directors Compensation Plan (the
"Directors Plan"). Effective upon the closing of the offering, restricted stock units were granted by the Company to its
non-employee directors under the Directors Plan. These grants are scheduled to vest on the earlier to occur of
September 29, 2015 or the date of the 2015 annual shareholders meeting. If a dividend is paid on shares underlying
the stock units prior to the date such shares are distributed, those dividends will be distributed following vesting in the
same form as the dividend that has been paid to shareholders generally. In the event that a director ceases to serve on
the Board of Directors prior to the vesting date for any reason other than under circumstances which would constitute
cause, the restricted stock units will fully vest on the date of the director's cessation from service.
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
In connection with the offering, the Company adopted the 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which provides
eligible employees an opportunity to purchase its common stock at a 10% discount, through accumulated payroll
deductions. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2014 eligible employees may contribute up to 10% of eligible
compensation to the ESPP, except that this limit is increased to 50% of eligible compensation for the first offering
period during the fourth quarter of 2014; in each case, no participant may purchase shares in any year with a value
exceeding $25,000. Offering periods under the ESPP are quarterly.
Shares of Company common stock are purchased by a participant on the last day of each quarter at a 10% discount
from the fair market value (fair market value under the plan is defined as the closing price on the day of purchase).
Prior to the date the shares are purchased, participants do not have any rights or privileges as a stockholder with
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respect to shares to be purchased at the end of the offering period.
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NOTE 21 - EARNINGS PER SHARE
Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(dollars in millions, except share data) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Numerator:
Basic:
Net income (loss) from operations $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
Less: undistributed earnings allocated to participating
securities — — — —

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
Diluted:
Net income (loss) from operations $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
Less: undistributed earnings allocated to participating
securities — — — —

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding - basic 559,998,324 559,998,324 559,998,324 559,998,324
Dilutive common shares 245,423 — 82,707 —
Weighted-average common shares outstanding - diluted 560,243,747 559,998,324 560,081,031 559,998,324
Earnings per common share:
Basic $0.34 $0.26 $1.19 ($6.39 )
Diluted 0.34 0.26 1.19 (6.39 )

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income/(loss) available to common shareholders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income/(loss)
available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period,
plus the effect of potential dilutive common shares such as share-based awards, using the treasury stock method.
Potential dilutive common shares are excluded from the computation of diluted EPS in the periods where the effect
would be antidilutive.

Unvested restricted shares that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or undistributed earnings are participating
securities and, therefore, are included in computing both basic and diluted EPS using the two-class method as
mandated by relevant accounting guidance.

On August 22, 2014, the Company declared and made effective a 165,582-for-1 forward stock split of common stock.
As a result, all share and per share data have been restated to reflect the effect of the split.

NOTE 22 - OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE
The following table presents the details of other operating expense:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Deposit insurance $23 $18 $69 $67
Promotional expense 19 18 60 56
Settlements and operating losses 10 9 74 32
Postage and delivery 12 14 37 39
Other 58 64 199 190
Other operating expense $122 $123 $439 $384

NOTE 23 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
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The Company has evaluated the impacts of events that have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2014 through the
date the unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements were filed with the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission. Based on this evaluation, the Company has determined none of these events were required to
be recognized or disclosed in the
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CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes, other than that on October 8, 2014 Citizens
executed a capital exchange transaction which involved the issuance of $334 million of 10-year subordinated notes to
RBSG at a rate of 4.082% and the simultaneous repurchase of 14,297,761 shares of common stock owned by RBS
Group a total cost of $334 million and an average price per share of $23.36. The purchase price per share was the
average of the daily volume-weighted average price of a share of our common stock as reported by the New York
Stock Exchange over the five trading days preceding the purchase date.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
Forward-Looking Statements
This document contains forward-looking statements within the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Statements regarding potential future share repurchases and future dividends are forward-looking statements. Also,
any statement that does not describe historical or current facts is a forward-looking statement. These statements often
include the words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “intends,” “plans,” “goals,” “targets,” “initiatives,” “potentially,”
“probably,” “projects,” “outlook” or similar expressions or future conditional verbs such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “would,” and
“could.”

Forward-looking statements are based upon the current beliefs and expectations of management, and on information
currently available to management. Our statements speak as of the date hereof, and we do not assume any obligation
to update these statements or to update the reasons why actual results could differ from those contained in such
statements in light of new information or future events. We caution you, therefore, against relying on any of these
forward-looking statements. They are neither statements of historical fact nor guarantees or assurances of future
performance. While there is no assurance that any list of risks and uncertainties or risk factors is complete, important
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include the
following, without limitation:

•
negative economic conditions that adversely affect the general economy, housing prices, the job market, consumer
confidence and spending habits which may affect, among other things, the level of nonperforming assets, charge-offs
and provision expense;

•the rate of growth in the economy and employment levels, as well as general business and economic conditions;

•our ability to implement our strategic plan, including the cost savings and efficiency components, and achieve ourindicative performance targets;

•our ability to remedy regulatory deficiencies and meet supervisory requirements and expectations;

•liabilities resulting from litigation and regulatory investigations;

•our capital and liquidity requirements (including under regulatory capital standards, such as the Basel III capitalstandards) and our ability to generate capital internally or raise capital on favorable terms;

•the effect of the current low interest rate environment or changes in interest rates on our net interest income, netinterest margin and our mortgage originations, mortgage servicing rights and mortgages held for sale;

•
changes in interest rates and market liquidity, as well as the magnitude of such changes, which may reduce interest
margins, impact funding sources and affect the ability to originate and distribute financial products in the primary and
secondary markets;

•the effect of changes in the level of checking or savings account deposits on our funding costs and net interest margin;

•
financial services reform and other current, pending or future legislation or regulation that could have a negative
effect on our revenue and businesses, including the Dodd-Frank Act and other legislation and regulation relating to
bank products and services;

•a failure in or breach of our operational or security systems or infrastructure, or those of our third party vendors orother service providers, including as a result of cyber attacks;

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

99



•management’s ability to identify and manage these and other risks; and

•any failure by us to successfully replicate or replace certain functions, systems and infrastructure provided by RBSGroup.

In addition to the above factors, we also caution that the amount and timing of any future common stock dividends
will depend on our financial condition, earnings, cash needs, regulatory constraints, capital requirements (including
requirements of our subsidiaries), and any other factors that our Board of Directors deems relevant in making such a
determination. Therefore, there can be no assurance that we will pay any dividends to holders of our common stock,
or as to the amount of any such dividends.
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In addition, the timing and manner of the sale of RBS Group’s remaining ownership of our common stock remains
uncertain, and we have no control over the manner in which RBS Group may seek to divest such remaining shares.
Any such sale would impact the price of our shares of common stock.

More information about factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the
forward-looking statements can be found under “Risk Factors” in our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission and declared effective on September 23, 2014.

Selected Consolidated Financial Data
    We derived the summary consolidated operating data for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and
2013 and the summary Consolidated Balance Sheet data as of September 30, 2014 from our unaudited interim
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information located elsewhere in this report.
Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results expected for any future period. 
In our opinion, the unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the same basis as the
audited Consolidated Financial Statements and include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments,
necessary for a fair presentation of the information set forth herein. Our operating results for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of those to be expected for the year ending December 31,
2014 or for any future period. You should read the following selected consolidated financial data in conjunction with
our unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2014 2013
OPERATING DATA:
Net interest income $820 $770 $2,461 $2,279
Noninterest income 341 383 1,339 1,253
Total revenue 1,161 1,153 3,800 3,532
Provision for credit losses 77 145 247 347
Noninterest expense 810 788 2,568 6,861
Noninterest expense, excluding goodwill impairment (1) 810 788 2,568 2,426
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 274 220 985 (3,676 )
Income tax expense (benefit) 85 76 317 (98 )
Net income (loss) 189 144 668 (3,578 )
Net income, excluding goodwill impairment (1) 189 144 668 502
Net income (loss) per average common share - basic and
diluted (2) 0.34 0.26 1.19 (6.39 )

Net income per average common share - basic and diluted,
excluding goodwill impairment (1) (2) 0.34 0.26 1.19 0.89

OTHER OPERATING DATA:
Return on average common equity (3) (12) 3.87 % 2.91 % 4.59 % (15.04 )%
Return on average common equity, excluding goodwill
impairment (1) (12) 3.87 2.91 4.59 2.96

Return on average tangible common equity (1) (12) 5.81 4.34 6.90 (25.54 )
Return on average tangible common equity, excluding
goodwill impairment (1) (12) 5.81 4.34 6.90 5.03

Return on average total assets (4) (12) 0.58 0.49 0.71 (2.82 )
Return on average total assets, excluding goodwill
impairment (1) (12) 0.58 0.49 0.71 0.55

Return on average total tangible assets (1) (12) 0.61 0.52 0.74 (3.05 )
0.61 0.52 0.74 0.60
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Return on average total tangible assets, excluding goodwill
impairment (1) (12)
Efficiency ratio (1) 69.84 68.49 67.58 194.29
Efficiency ratio, excluding goodwill impairment (1) 69.84 68.49 67.58 68.70
Net interest margin (5) (12) 2.77 2.88 2.84 2.85
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September 30, December 31,
(dollars in millions) 2014 2013
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total assets $131,341 $122,154
Loans and leases (6) 90,749 85,859
Allowance for loan and lease losses 1,201 1,221
Total securities 24,848 21,245
Goodwill 6,876 6,876
Total liabilities 111,958 102,958
Deposits (7) 93,463 86,903
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 5,184 4,791
Other short-term borrowed funds 6,715 2,251
Long-term borrowed funds 2,062 1,405
Stockholders' equity 19,383 19,196
OTHER BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Asset Quality Ratios:
Allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total loans and leases 1.32 % 1.42 %
Allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans
and leases 111.30 86.17

Nonperforming loans and leases as a percentage of total loans and leases 1.19 1.65
Nonperforming assets to total assets 0.85 1.20
Capital Ratios:
Tier 1 capital ratio (8) 12.9 13.5
Total capital ratio (9) 16.1 16.1
Tier 1 common equity ratio (10) 12.9 13.5
Leverage ratio (11) 10.9 11.6

(1) These measures are non-GAAP financial measures. For more information on the computation of these non-GAAP
financial measures, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations-Principal Components of Operations and Key Performance Metrics Used By Management-Key
Performance Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”
(2) EPS information reflects a 165,582-for-1 forward stock split effective on August 22, 2014.
(3) We define “Return on average common equity” as net income (loss) divided by average common equity.
(4) We define “Return on average total assets” as net income (loss) divided by average total assets.
(5) We define “Net interest margin” as net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.
(6) Excludes loans held for sale of $208 million and $1.3 billion as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively.
(7) Excludes deposits held for sale of $5.3 billion as of December 31, 2013.
(8) “Tier 1 capital ratio” is Tier 1 capital balance divided by total risk-weighted assets as defined under Basel I.
(9) “Total capital ratio” is total capital balance divided by total risk-weighted assets as defined under Basel I.
(10) “Tier 1 common equity ratio” is Tier 1 capital balance, minus preferred stock, divided by total risk-weighted assets
as defined under Basel I.
(11) “Leverage ratio” is Tier 1 capital balance divided by quarterly average total assets as defined under Basel I.
(12) Operating ratios for the periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are presented on an annualized basis.

Overview
We are the 13th largest retail bank holding company in the United States according to SNL Financial with $131.3
billion of total assets as of September 30, 2014. Headquartered in Providence, Rhode Island, we deliver a broad range
of retail and commercial banking products and services to individuals, institutions and companies. Our approximately

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

103



17,900 employees strive to meet the financial needs of customers and prospects through approximately 1,200 branches
and approximately 3,200 ATMs operated in an 11-state footprint across the New England, Mid-Atlantic and Midwest
regions and through our online, telephone and mobile banking platforms. We conduct our banking operations through
our two wholly-owned banking subsidiaries, CBNA and CBPA.
We operate our business through two operating segments: Consumer Banking and Commercial Banking. Consumer
Banking accounted for $47.2 billion and $45.2 billion, or approximately 53% and 53% of our year-to-date average
loan and lease balances (including loans held for sale) for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Consumer Banking serves retail customers and small businesses with annual revenues of up to $25
million with products and services that include deposit products, mortgage and home equity lending, student loans,
auto financing, credit cards, business loans and wealth management and investment services.
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Commercial Banking accounted for $37.3 billion and $34.3 billion, or approximately 42% and 40% of our
year-to-date average loan and lease balances (including loans held for sale) for the nine months ended September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Commercial Banking offers a broad complement of financial products and solutions,
including lending and leasing, trade financing, deposit and treasury management, foreign exchange and interest rate
risk management, corporate finance and debt and equity capital markets capabilities.
As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had $3.3 billion and $3.8 billion, respectively, of non-core
asset balances, which are included in Other along with our treasury function, securities portfolio, wholesale funding
activities, goodwill, community development assets and other unallocated assets, liabilities, revenues, provision for
credit losses and expenses not attributed to Consumer Banking or Commercial Banking. Non-core assets are primarily
loans inconsistent with our strategic goals, generally as a result of geographic location, industry, product type or risk
level. We have actively managed these loans down since they were designated as non-core on June 30, 2009, and the
portfolio decreased a further 15% as of September 30, 2014 compared to December 31, 2013. The largest component
of our non-core portfolio is our home equity products serviced by others (a portion of which we now service
internally).

Recent Events
On September 29, 2014, we completed the IPO of 161,000,000 shares, or 28.8%, of our common stock, which
includes the full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase an additional 21,000,000 shares. Our common stock
began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on September 24, 2014, under the ticker symbol “CFG.” Upon
completion of a capital transaction with RBS Group on October 8, 2014, RBS Group owned 70.5% of the outstanding
common stock of CFG. For additional information, see “Capital” and Note 23 “Subsequent Events” to our unaudited
interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information located elsewhere in this
report.

On June 20, 2014, we completed the sale of certain assets and liabilities associated with our Chicago-area retail
branches, small business relationships and select middle market relationships to U.S. Bancorp. The agreement to sell
these assets and liabilities to U.S. Bancorp had previously been announced in January 2014. This sale included 103
branches, including 94 full-service branches, with $4.8 billion of deposits and $1.0 billion in loans as of June 20,
2014. We recorded a gain on sale of $288 million and also incurred related expenses of $17 million. Management
estimates that the Chicago Divestiture has the effect of reducing quarterly net interest income by approximately $13
million, noninterest income by approximately $12 million and noninterest expense by approximately $21 million. We
intend to invest the majority of the sale proceeds over time into higher returning activities.

On May 29, 2014, we entered into an agreement with a third party to purchase predominantly prime auto loans,
including an initial purchase of $150 million in principal balances of loans. On the same date, we entered into an
agreement with the same party to purchase auto loans for future rolling 90-day periods that automatically renew until
termination by either party. For the first year ended May 29, 2015, we are required to purchase a minimum of $250
million in principal balances of loans up to a maximum of $600 million in principal balances of loans per rolling
90-day period. After May 29, 2015, the minimum per each rolling 90-day period increases to $400 million in principal
balances of loans, with a maximum of $600 million in principal balances of loans. We may cancel the agreement at
any time at will; however, if we elect to cancel at any time during the first three years of the agreement, we will be
charged a variable termination fee.
Key Factors Affecting Our Business
Macro-economic conditions
Our business is affected by national, regional and local economic conditions, as well as the perception of those
conditions and future economic prospects. The significant macro-economic factors that impact our business are: the
U.S. and global economic landscapes, unemployment rates, the housing markets and interest rates.
The U.S. economy expanded 3.5% in the three months ended September 30, 2014, as gains in retail sales and
government spending were offset by leaner inventories and slower consumer spending, resulting in slower growth
from the 4.6% pace in the second quarter of 2014. This expansion followed considerable improvement in the
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economic landscape in 2013, with nominal GDP growth averaging 3.1% for the year. The Eurozone economy was flat
in the three months ended June 30, 2014, after having emerged from recession in the second half of 2013. A
slowing economy in Germany and the crisis in Ukraine added to fears of a weaker recovery in Europe. In response the
European Central Bank announced additional easing measures that include the further lowering of benchmark interest
rates and the purchasing of private sector credit. The U.S. unemployment rate dropped from 6.7% at year-end 2013, to
5.9% at September 30, 2014. The overall improvement was partially driven by a decrease in the labor force
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participation rate, which declined to its lowest level in over 35 years. After a pause in late 2013 and the first quarter of
2014, the housing market continued to strengthen in the third quarter of 2014, as demonstrated by an increase in
existing home sales; however, with slowing price increases. The Federal Reserve Board maintained very
accommodative monetary policy conditions through a zero to 25 basis point federal funds target at the short end of the
curve, and quantitative easing programs designed to reduce longer tenor rates. Interest rates remain relatively low, and
financial conditions are supportive of continued growth. See “Interest rates” below for further discussion of the impact
of interest rates on our results.

Credit trends
Credit trends improved during the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013,
largely driven by improving macro-economic factors as discussed above. Net charge-offs for the three months ended
September 30, 2014 of $88 million decreased $43 million, or 33%, from $131 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2013. The annualized net charge-offs as a percentage of total average loans improved to 0.38% for the
three months ended September 30, 2014, compared to 0.61% for the three months ended September 30, 2013.
Credit trends improved during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013,
largely driven by improving macro-economic factors as discussed above. Net charge-offs for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 of $243 million decreased $143 million, or 37%, from $386 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013. The annualized net charge-offs as a percentage of total average loans improved to 0.37% for the
nine months ended September 30, 2014, compared to 0.61% for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. The
overall charge-off rates are expected to increase marginally in 2015 and 2016 but are expected to remain below 2013
levels as commercial recovery opportunities dissipate, home prices stabilize and non-core portfolios continue to
run-off.
Interest rates
Net interest income is our largest source of revenue and is the difference between the interest earned on
interest-earning assets (usually loans and investment securities) and the interest expense incurred in connection with
interest-bearing liabilities (usually deposits and borrowings). The level of net interest income is primarily a function of
the average balance of interest-earning assets, the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities and the spread
between the contractual yield on such assets and the contractual cost of such liabilities. These factors are influenced
by both the pricing and mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities which, in turn, are impacted by
external factors such as local economic conditions, competition for loans and deposits, the monetary policy of the
Federal Reserve Board and market interest rates. For further discussion, refer to “Risk Governance" and "Market
Risk-Non-Trading Risk.”
The cost of our deposits and short-term wholesale borrowings is largely based on short-term interest rates, which are
primarily driven by the Federal Reserve Board’s actions. However, the yields generated by our loans and securities are
typically driven by short-term and long-term interest rates, which are set by the market or, at times, by the Federal
Reserve Board’s actions. The level of net interest income is therefore influenced by movements in such interest rates
and the pace at which such movements occur. In 2013 and through the nine months ended September 30, 2014,
short-term and long-term interest rates remained at very low levels by historical standards, with many benchmark
rates, such as the federal funds rate and one- and three-month LIBOR, near zero. Further declines in the yield curve or
a decline in longer-term yields relative to short-term yields (a flatter yield curve) would have an adverse impact on our
net interest margin and net interest income. The low interest rate environment has compressed our net interest margin
in recent periods.
In 2013 and through the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Federal Reserve Board maintained a highly
accommodative monetary policy, and indicated that this policy would remain in effect for a considerable time after its
asset purchase program ends and the economic recovery strengthens. As of September 30, 2014, the Federal Reserve
was purchasing $15.0 billion per month composed of $10.0 billion in Treasury securities and $5.0 billion in agency
mortgage-backed securities. The Federal Reserve Board announced an end to purchases in October 2014.
Regulatory trends
We are subject to extensive regulation and supervision, which continue to evolve as the legal and regulatory
framework governing our operations continues to change. The current operating environment also has heightened
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regulatory expectations around many regulations including consumer compliance, the Bank Secrecy Act, and
anti-money laundering compliance and increased internal audit activities. As a result of these heightened expectations,
we expect to incur additional costs for additional compliance personnel or professional fees associated with advisors
and consultants.
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Dodd-Frank regulation
We are subject to a variety of laws and regulations, including the Dodd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act is complex,
and many aspects of the Act are subject to final rulemaking that will take effect over several years. The Dodd-Frank
Act will continue to impact our earnings through fee reductions, higher costs and imposition of new restrictions on us.
The Dodd-Frank Act may also continue to have a material adverse impact on the value of certain assets and liabilities
held on our balance sheet. The ultimate impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our business will depend on regulatory
interpretation and rulemaking as well as the success of any of our actions to mitigate the negative impacts of certain
provisions. Key parts of the Dodd-Frank Act that specifically impact our business are the repeal of a previous
prohibition against payment of interest on demand deposits, which became effective in July 2011, the introduction of a
stress-testing and capital planning framework developed by the Federal Reserve Board, known as CCAR and the
DFAST framework. The DFAST process projects net income, loan losses and capital ratios over a nine-quarter
horizon under hypothetical, stressful macroeconomic and financial market scenarios developed by the Federal Reserve
Board as well as certain mandated assumptions about capital distributions prescribed in the DFAST rule. During the
third quarter of 2014, as part of our obligations under DFAST, we published the results of our mid-cycle severely
adverse scenario. These results can be viewed on our Investor Relations website under "Regulatory Disclosures."
Consistent with the purpose of the DFAST process and the assumptions used in order to assess our likely performance
during hypothetical economic conditions, the projected results under the DFAST severely adverse scenarios show
severe negative impacts on earnings. However, these pro forma results should not be interpreted to be management
expectations in light of the current economic and operating environment.
Repeal of the prohibition on depository institutions paying interest on demand deposits
We began offering interest-bearing corporate checking accounts after the 2011 repeal of the prohibition on depository
institutions paying interest on demand deposits. Currently, industrywide interest rates for this product are very low
and thus far the impact of the repeal has not had a significant effect on our results. However, market rates could
increase more significantly in the future. If we need to pay higher interest rates on checking accounts to maintain
current clients or attract new clients, our interest expense would increase, perhaps materially. Furthermore, if we fail
to offer interest rates at a sufficient level to retain demand deposits, our core deposits may be reduced, which would
require us to obtain funding in other ways or limit potential future asset growth.
Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review
CCAR is an annual exercise by the Federal Reserve Board to ensure that the largest bank holding companies have
sufficient capital to continue operations throughout times of economic and financial stress and robust, forward-looking
capital planning processes that account for their unique risks.
As part of CCAR, the Federal Reserve Board evaluates institutions’ capital adequacy, internal capital adequacy
assessment processes and their plans to make capital distributions, such as dividend payments or stock repurchases. In
March 2014, the Federal Reserve Board objected on qualitative grounds to our capital plan submitted as part of the
CCAR process. In addition to modifications we may be required to make in connection with our proposed capital
distributions through the CCAR process, we may incur additional expenses in connection with the CCAR process that
would affect our profitability and results of operations.
Basel III final rules applicable to us and our banking subsidiaries
In July 2013, the Federal Reserve Board, OCC, and FDIC issued the U.S. Basel III final rules. The final rule
implements the Basel III capital framework and certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act, including the Collins
Amendment. Certain aspects of the final rules, such as the new minimum capital ratios, will become effective on
January 1, 2015. In order to comply with the new capital requirements, we established capital ratio targets that meet or
exceed U.S. regulatory expectations under fully phased-in Basel III rules, and as a result our capital requirements were
increased.

HELOC Payment Shock
Recent attention has been given by regulators, rating agencies, and the general press regarding the potential for
increased exposure to credit losses associated with HELOCs that were originated during the period of rapid home
price appreciation between 2003 and 2007. Industrywide, many of the HELOCs originated during this timeframe were
structured with an extended interest-only payment period followed by a requirement to convert to a higher payment
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amount that would begin fully amortizing both principal and interest beginning at a certain date in the future. As of
September 30, 2014, approximately 31% of our $16.1 billion HELOC portfolio, or $5.0 billion in drawn balances, and
$4.1 billion in undrawn balances, were subject to a payment reset or
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balloon payment between October 1, 2014 and December 31, 2017, including $294 million in balloon balances where
full payment is due at the end of a ten-year interest only draw period.
To help manage this exposure, in September 2013, we launched a comprehensive program designed to provide
heightened customer outreach to inform, educate and assist customers through the reset process as well as to offer
alternative financing and forbearance options. Preliminary results indicate that our efforts to assist customers at risk of
default have successfully reduced delinquency and charge-off rates compared to our original expectations.
As of September 30, 2014, for the $668 million of our HELOC portfolio that was originally structured with a reset
period in 2013, 93.4% of the balances were refinanced, paid off or were current on payments, 3.5% were past due and
3.1% had been charged off. As of September 30, 2014, for the $898 million of our HELOC portfolio that was
originally structured with a reset period in 2014, 95.1% of the balances were refinanced, paid off or were current on
payments, 4.1% were past due and 0.8% had been charged off. HELOC portfolio balances of $127 million are
scheduled to reset in the remainder of 2014. Factors that affect our future expectations for charge-off risk for the
portion of our HELOC portfolio subject to reset periods in the future include improved loan-to-value ratios resulting
from continued home price appreciation, stable portfolio credit score profiles and more robust loss mitigation efforts.
Factors Affecting Comparability of Our Results
Goodwill
During the 19-year period from 1988 to 2007, we completed a series of more than 25 acquisitions of other financial
institutions and financial assets and liabilities. We accounted for these types of business combinations using the
acquisition method of accounting. Under this accounting method, the acquired company’s net assets are recorded at
fair value at the date of acquisition, and the difference between the purchase price and the fair value of the net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill.
Under relevant accounting guidance, we are required to review goodwill for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or circumstances indicate that the fair value of any of our business units might be less than its carrying value.
The valuation of goodwill is dependent on forward-looking expectations related to the performance of the U.S.
economy and our associated financial performance.
The prolonged delay in the full recovery of the U.S. economy, and the impact of that delay on our earnings
expectations, prompted us to record a $4.4 billion pre-tax ($4.1 billion after-tax) goodwill impairment as of June 30,
2013 related to our Consumer Banking reporting unit. For segment reporting purposes, the impairment charge is
reflected in Other.
Although the U.S. economy has demonstrated signs of recovery, notably improvements in unemployment and
housing, the pace and extent of recovery in these indicators, as well as in overall gross domestic product, have lagged
behind previous expectations. The impact of the slow recovery is most evident in Consumer Banking. The forecasted
lower economic growth for the United States, coupled with increasing costs of complying with the new regulatory
framework in the financial industry, resulted in a deceleration of expected growth for Consumer Banking’s future
income, which resulted in our recording of a goodwill impairment charge during the second quarter of 2013. We have
recorded goodwill impairment charges in the past and any further impairment to our goodwill could materially affect
our results in any given period. As of both September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had a carrying value of
goodwill of $6.9 billion. For additional information regarding our goodwill impairment testing, see Note 5 “Goodwill”
to our unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information included
elsewhere in this report as well as Note 1 “Significant Accounting Policies” and Note 8 “Goodwill” to our audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Investment in our business
We regularly incur expenses associated with investments in our infrastructure, and, from 2009 to year end 2013, we
have invested more than $1.0 billion in infrastructure and technology, with an additional $250 million planned for
each of 2014 and 2015. These investments, which are designed to lower our costs and improve our customer
experience, include significant programs to enhance our resiliency, upgrade customer-facing technology and
streamline operations. Recent significant investments included the 2013 launch of our new teller system, new
commercial loan platform and new auto loan platform and the 2013 upgrade of the majority of our ATM network,
including equipping more than 1,450 ATMs with advanced deposit-taking functionality. These investments also
involved spending to prepare for the planned rollout of our new mortgage platform. We expect that these investments
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will increase our long-term overall efficiency and add to our capacity to increase revenue.
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Operating expenses to operate as a fully independent public company
As part of our transition to a stand-alone company, we expect to incur one-time expenditures of approximately $55
million, including capitalized costs of $18 million, as well as ongoing incremental expenses of approximately $34
million per year. We expect these ongoing costs will include higher local charges associated with exiting worldwide
vendor relationships and incremental expenses to support information technology, compliance, corporate governance,
regulatory, financial and risk infrastructure that are necessary to enable us to operate as a fully stand-alone public
company.

Principal Components of Operations and Key Performance Metrics Used By Management
As a banking institution, we manage and evaluate various aspects of both our results of operations and our financial
condition. We evaluate the levels and trends of the line items included in our balance sheet and statement of
operations, as well as various financial ratios that are commonly used in our industry. We analyze these ratios and
financial trends against our own historical performance, our budgeted performance and the financial condition and
performance of comparable banking institutions in our region and nationally.
The primary line items we use in our key performance metrics to manage and evaluate our statement of operations
include net interest income, noninterest income, total revenue, provision for credit losses, noninterest expense and net
(loss) income. The primary line items we use in our key performance metrics to manage and evaluate our balance
sheet data include loans and leases, securities, allowance for credit losses, deposits, borrowed funds and derivatives.

Net interest income
Net interest income is the difference between the interest earned on interest-earning assets (usually loans and
investment securities) and the interest expense incurred in connection with interest-bearing liabilities (usually deposits
and borrowings). The level of net interest income is primarily a function of the average balance of interest-earning
assets, the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities and the spread between the contractual yield on such assets
and the cost of such liabilities. Net interest income is impacted by the relative mix of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, movements in market interest rates, levels of nonperforming assets and pricing pressure
from competitors. The mix of interest-earning assets is influenced by loan demand and by management’s continual
assessment of the rate of return and relative risk associated with various classes of interest-earning assets.

The mix of interest-bearing liabilities is influenced by management’s assessment of the need for lower cost funding
sources weighed against relationships with customers and growth requirements and is impacted by competition for
deposits in our market and the availability and pricing of other sources of funds.

Noninterest income
The primary components of our noninterest income are service charges and fees, card fees, trust and investment
services revenue and securities gains, net.

Total revenue
Total revenue is the sum of our net interest income and our noninterest income.

Provision for credit losses
The provision for credit losses is the amount of expense that, based on our judgment, is required to maintain the
allowance for credit losses at an adequate level to absorb probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance
sheet date and that, in management’s judgment, is appropriate under relevant accounting guidance. The provision for
credit losses includes the provision for loan and lease losses as well as the provision for unfunded commitments. The
determination of the amount of the allowance is complex and involves a high degree of judgment and subjectivity. For
additional information regarding the provision for credit losses, see “Critical Accounting Estimates—Allowance for
Credit Losses,” Note 4 “Allowance for Credit Losses, Nonperforming Assets, and Concentrations of Credit Risk” to our
unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 — Financial Information included
elsewhere in this report as well as Note 1 “Significant Accounting Policies” and Note 5 “Allowance for Credit Losses,
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Nonperforming Assets, and Concentrations of Credit Risk” to our audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Noninterest expense
Noninterest expense includes salary and employee benefits, outside services, occupancy expense, equipment expense,
goodwill impairment, and other operating expenses.
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Net income (loss)
We evaluate our net income based on measures including return on average common equity, return on average total
assets, return on average tangible common equity and efficiency ratio.

Loans and leases 
We classify our loans and leases pursuant to the following classes: commercial, commercial real estate, leases,
residential (including residential mortgages and home equity loans and lines of credit), home equity products serviced
by others (including certain purchased home equity loans and lines of credit), other secured retail (including
automobile loans and other installment loans) and unsecured retail (including student loans and credit card).

Loans are reported at the amount of their outstanding principal, net of charge-offs, unearned income, deferred loan
origination fees and costs and unamortized premiums or discounts (on purchased loans). Deferred loan origination
fees and costs and purchase discounts and premiums are amortized as an adjustment of yield over the life of the loan,
using the level yield interest method. Unamortized amounts remaining upon prepayment or sale are recorded as
interest income or gain (loss) on sale, respectively. Credit card receivables include billed and uncollected interest and
fees.
Leases are classified at the inception of the lease by type. Lease receivables, including leveraged leases, are reported
at the aggregate of lease payments receivable and estimated residual values, net of unearned and deferred income,
including unamortized investment credits. Lease residual values are reviewed at least annually for
other-than-temporary impairment, with valuation adjustments recognized currently against noninterest income.
Leveraged leases are reported net of non-recourse debt. Unearned income is recognized to yield a level rate of return
on the net investment in the leases.
Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at fair value. As of December 31, 2013, other loans held for sale primarily
include loans relating to our Chicago branch network and are carried at the lower of cost or fair value.

Securities
Our securities portfolio is managed to seek return while maintaining prudent levels of quality, market risk and
liquidity. Investments in debt and equity securities are carried in four portfolios: AFS, HTM, trading account assets
and other investment securities. We determine the appropriate classification at the time of purchase. Securities in our
available for sale portfolio will be held for indefinite periods of time and may be sold in response to changes in
interest rates, changes in prepayment risk or other factors relevant to our asset and liability strategy. Securities in our
AFS portfolio are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported in OCI, as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity, net of taxes. Securities are classified as HTM because we have the ability and intent to hold the
securities to maturity, and are carried at amortized cost. Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally
for the purpose of being sold in the near term are classified as trading account assets and are carried at fair value.
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on such assets are reported in noninterest income. Other investment
securities are comprised mainly of FHLB stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock, which are carried at cost.

Allowance for credit losses
Our estimate of probable losses in the loan and lease portfolios is recorded in the allowance for loan and lease losses
and the reserve for unfunded lending commitments. Together these are referred to as the allowance for credit losses.
We evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses using the following ratios: allowance for loan and lease
losses as a percentage of total loans and leases; allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of nonperforming
loans and leases; and nonperforming loans and leases as a percentage of total loans and leases. For additional
information, see “Critical Accounting Estimates-Allowance for Credit Losses,” Note 1 “Significant Accounting Policies”
and Note 5 “Allowance for Credit Losses, Nonperforming Assets and Concentrations of Credit Risk” to our audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Deposits
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Our deposits include: on demand checking, checking with interest, regular savings accounts, money market accounts
and term deposits. As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, total deposits were $93.5 billion and $86.9
billion, respectively.

Borrowed funds
As of September 30, 2014, our total short-term borrowed funds include federal funds purchased, securities sold under
agreement to repurchase and other short-term borrowed funds. As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
total short-term

64

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

116



borrowed funds were $11.9 billion and $7.0 billion, respectively. Our total short-term borrowed funds are offset by
$1.9 billion and $1.4 billion in excess reserves held at Federal Reserve Banks as of September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively.
As of September 30, 2014, our long-term borrowed funds include $350 million of fixed rate subordinated debt held by
external parties and $1.7 billion of subordinated debt held by the RBS Group. During the third quarter of 2014, we
exchanged Tier 1 common equity for Tier 2 subordinated debt.
Subsequent to the close of the quarter, on October 8, 2014 we executed a capital exchange transaction with RBS
Group which involved the issuance of $334 million of 10-year subordinated notes at a rate of 4.082% and the
simultaneous repurchase of 14,297,761 shares of common stock owned by RBS Group at an average price per share of
$23.36. In addition, we plan to continue our strategy of capital optimization by exchanging an additional $500 million
- $750 million for a lesser form of regulatory capital in 2015 and 2016, subject to regulatory approval and market
conditions.

Derivatives
Historically, we have used pay-fixed interest rate swaps to synthetically lengthen liabilities, offsetting duration in
fixed-rate assets. With our material prepayment of fixed-rate mortgages and home equity loans since 2008, these
swaps were no longer needed and have been terminated or allowed to run-off, resulting in a reduction in the notional
balance of these swaps to $1.0 billion as of September 30, 2014, from $1.5 billion as of December 31, 2013.
We also use receive-fixed swaps to minimize the exposure to variability in the interest cash flows on our floating rate
assets. As of September 30, 2014, a notional amount of $4.0 billion receive-fixed swaps had been executed. The assets
and liabilities recorded for derivatives designated as hedges reflect the market value of these hedge instruments.
We also sell interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forwards to commercial customers. Offsetting swap and forward
agreements are simultaneously transacted to minimize our market risk associated with the customer derivative
products. The assets and liabilities recorded for derivatives not designated as hedges reflect the market value of these
transactions.
Key Performance Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures
We consider various measures when evaluating our performance and making day-to-day operating decisions, as well
as evaluating capital utilization and adequacy, including:
•Return on average common equity, which we define as net income (loss) divided by average common equity;

•Return on average tangible common equity, which we define as net income (loss) divided by the difference of averagecommon equity excluding average goodwill, (net of related deferred tax liability), and average other intangibles;
•Return on average total assets, which we define as net income (loss) divided by average total assets;

•Return on average total tangible assets, which we define as net income (loss) divided by average total assets excludingaverage goodwill, (net of related deferred tax liability), and average other intangibles;

•

Efficiency ratio, which we define as the ratio of our total noninterest expense to the sum of net interest income and
total noninterest income. We measure our efficiency ratio to evaluate the efficiency of our operations as it helps us
monitor how costs are changing compared to our income. A decrease in our efficiency ratio represents improvement;
and

•Net interest margin, which we calculate by dividing annualized net interest income for the period by average totalinterest-earning assets, is a key measure that we use to evaluate our net interest income.

Certain of the above financial measures, including return on average tangible common equity, return on average total
tangible assets and the efficiency ratio are not recognized under GAAP. We also present noninterest expense, net
income (loss), return on average total tangible assets, return on average tangible common equity, return on average
common equity, return on average total assets, and efficiency ratio, excluding the $4.4 billion pre-tax ($4.1 billion
after-tax) goodwill impairment we incurred for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013. In addition, we
present net income (loss) and return on average tangible common equity, net of goodwill impairment, restructuring
charges and special items for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013. We believe these
non-GAAP measures provide useful information to investors because these are among the measures used by our
management team to evaluate our operating performance and make day-to-day operating decisions. In addition, we
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believe goodwill impairment, restructuring charges and special items in any period does not reflect the operational
performance of the business in that period and, accordingly, it is useful to consider these line items with and without
goodwill impairment, restructuring charges and special items. We believe this presentation also increases
comparability of period-to-period results.
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We also consider pro forma capital ratios defined by banking regulators but not effective at each period end to be
non-GAAP financial measures. Since analysts and banking regulators may assess our capital adequacy using these pro
forma ratios, we believe they are useful to provide investors the ability to assess our capital adequacy on the same
basis.
Other companies may use similarly titled non-GAAP financial measures that are calculated differently from the way
we calculate such measures. Accordingly, our non-GAAP financial measures may not be comparable to similar
measures used by other companies. We caution investors not to place undue reliance on such non-GAAP measures,
but instead to consider them with the most directly comparable GAAP measure. Non-GAAP measures have
limitations as analytical tools, and should not be considered in isolation, or as a substitute for our results reported
under GAAP.

The following table reconciles non-GAAP financial measures to GAAP:

As of and for the Three
Months Ended September
30,

As of and for the Nine
Months Ended September
30, 

(dollars in millions, except per-share amounts) Ref. 2014  2013 2014 2013
Noninterest expense, excluding goodwill
impairment:
Noninterest expense (GAAP) A $810 $788 $2,568 $6,861
Less: Goodwill impairment (GAAP) — — — 4,435
Noninterest expense, excluding goodwill
impairment (non-GAAP) B $810 $788 $2,568 $2,426

Net income (loss), excluding goodwill
impairment:
Net income (loss) (GAAP) C $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
Add: Goodwill impairment, net of income tax
benefit (GAAP) — — — 4,080

Net income (loss), excluding goodwill impairment
(non-GAAP) D $189 $144 $668 $502

Return on average common equity, excluding
goodwill impairment:
Average common equity (GAAP) E $19,411 $19,627 $19,463 $22,667
Return on average common equity, excluding
goodwill impairment (non-GAAP)(1) D/E 3.87 % 2.91 % 4.59 % 2.96  %

Return on average tangible common equity,
excluding goodwill impairment:
Average common equity (GAAP) E $19,411 $19,627 $19,463 $22,667
Less: Average goodwill (GAAP) 6,876 6,876 6,876 9,800
Less: Average other intangibles (GAAP) 6 9 7 10
Add: Average deferred tax liabilities related to
goodwill (GAAP) 384 325 368 486

Average tangible common equity (non-GAAP) F $12,913 $13,067 $12,948 $13,343
Return on average tangible common equity
(non-GAAP)(1) C/F 5.81 % 4.34 % 6.90 % (25.54 )%

Return on average tangible common equity,
excluding goodwill impairment (non-GAAP)(1) D/F 5.81 % 4.34 % 6.90 % 5.03  %
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As of and for the Three
Months Ended September
30,

As of and for the Nine
Months Ended September
30, 

(dollars in millions, except per-share amounts) Ref. 2014  2013 2014 2013
Noninterest expense, excluding goodwill
impairment:
Return on average total assets, excluding goodwill
impairment:
Average total assets (GAAP) G $128,691 $117,386 $126,598 $121,026
Return on average total assets, excluding goodwill
impairment (non-GAAP)(1) D/G 0.58 % 0.49 % 0.71 % 0.55  %

Return on average total tangible assets, excluding
goodwill impairment:
Average total assets (GAAP) G $128,691 $117,386 $126,598 $121,026
Less: Average goodwill (GAAP) 6,876 6,876 6,876 9,800
Less: Average other intangibles (GAAP) 6 9 7 10
Add: Average deferred tax liabilities related to
goodwill (GAAP) 384 325 368 486

Average tangible assets (non-GAAP) H $122,193 $110,826 $120,083 $111,702
Return on average total tangible assets
(non-GAAP)(1) C/H 0.61 % 0.52 % 0.74 % (3.05 )%

Return on average total tangible assets, excluding
goodwill impairment (non-GAAP)(1) D/H 0.61 % 0.52 % 0.74 % 0.60  %

Efficiency ratio, excluding goodwill impairment:
Net interest income (GAAP) $820 $770 $2,461 $2,279
Noninterest income (GAAP) 341 383 1,339 1,253
Total revenue (GAAP) I $1,161 $1,153 $3,800 $3,532
Efficiency ratio (non-GAAP) A/I 69.84 % 68.49 % 67.58 % 194.29  %
Efficiency ratio, excluding goodwill impairment
(non-GAAP) B/I 69.84 % 68.49 % 67.58 % 68.70  %

Net income (loss) per average common
share-basic and diluted, excluding goodwill
impairment:
Average common shares outstanding - basic
(GAAP) J 559,998,324 559,998,324 559,998,324 559,998,324

Average common shares outstanding - diluted
(GAAP) K 560,243,747 559,998,324 560,081,031 559,998,324

Net income (loss) applicable to common
stockholders (GAAP) L $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )

Net income (loss) per average common share -
basic (GAAP) L/J 0.34 0.26 1.19 (6.39 )

Net income (loss) per average common share -
diluted (GAAP) L/K 0.34 0.26 1.19 (6.39 )

Net income (loss) applicable to common
stockholders, excluding goodwill impairment
(non-GAAP)

M 189 144 668 502

Net income (loss) per average common
share-basic, excluding goodwill impairment
(non-GAAP)

M/J 0.34 0.26 1.19 0.89
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Net income (loss) per average common
share-diluted, excluding goodwill impairment
(non-GAAP)

M/K 0.34 0.26 1.19 0.89
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As of
September
30,

(dollars in millions, except per-share amounts) Ref. 2014 
Pro forma Basel III common equity Tier 1 capital
ratio:
Tier 1 common capital (regulatory) $13,330
Less: Change in DTA and other threshold
deductions (GAAP) (5 )

Basel III common equity Tier 1 (non-GAAP) N $13,335
Risk-weighted assets (regulatory general risk
weight approach) $103,207

Add: Net change in credit and other risk-weighted
assets (regulatory) 3,207

Basel III risk-weighted assets (non-GAAP) O $106,414
Pro forma Basel III common equity Tier 1 capital
ratio (non-GAAP) N/O 12.5 %

Pro forma Basel III Tier 1 capital ratio:
Basel III common equity Tier 1 (non-GAAP) N $13,335
Add: Trust preferred and minority interest (GAAP) —
Basel III Tier 1 capital (non-GAAP) P $13,335
Pro forma Basel III Tier 1 capital ratio
(non-GAAP) P/O 12.5 %

Pro forma Basel III total capital ratio:
Total Tier 2 common capital (regulatory) $3,282
Add: Excess allowance for loan and lease losses
(regulatory) —

Less: Reserves exceeding 1.25% of risk-weighted
assets (regulatory) —

Basel III common equity Tier 2 (non-GAAP) Q $3,282
Pro forma Basel III total capital (non-GAAP) N+Q $16,617
Pro forma Basel III total capital ratio (non-GAAP) (N+Q)/O 15.6 %
Pro forma Basel III leverage ratio:
Quarterly average assets (GAAP) $128,718
Less: Goodwill (GAAP) 6,876
Less: Restricted core capital elements
(regulatory)(2) 12

Add: Deferred tax liability related to goodwill
(GAAP) 399

Add: Other comprehensive income pension
adjustments (GAAP) 292

Basel III adjusted average assets (non-GAAP) R $122,521
Pro forma leverage ratio (non-GAAP) N/R 10.9 %
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As of and for the Three
Months Ended
September 30,

As of and for the Nine
Months Ended
September 30,

(dollars in millions) Ref. 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income (loss), excluding goodwill impairment,
restructuring charges and special items:
Net income (loss) (GAAP) C $189 $144 $668 ($3,578 )
Add: Goodwill impairment (GAAP) — — — 4,080
Add: Restructuring charges (GAAP) — — 64 —
Special items:
Less: Net gain on the Chicago Divestiture (GAAP) — — 180 —
Add: Regulatory charges (GAAP) 10 — 13 —
Add: Separation expenses / IPO related (GAAP) 3 — 8 —
 Net income (loss), excluding goodwill impairment,
restructuring charges and special items (non-GAAP) S $202 $144 $573 $502

Return on average tangible common equity, excluding
goodwill impairment, restructuring charges and special
items:
Average common equity (GAAP) E $19,411 $19,627 $19,463 $22,667
Less: Average goodwill (GAAP) 6,876 6,876 6,876 9,800
Less: Average other intangibles (GAAP) 6 9 7 10
Add: Average deferred tax liabilities related to goodwill
(GAAP) 384 325 368 486

Average tangible common equity (non-GAAP) F $12,913 $13,067 $12,948 $13,343
Return on average tangible common equity (non-GAAP) C/F 5.81 % 4.34 % 6.90 % (25.54 )%
Return on average tangible common equity, excluding
goodwill impairment, restructuring charges and special items
(non-GAAP) (1)

S/F 6.22 % 4.34 % 5.92 % 5.03  %

69

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

123



As of and for the Three Months Ended September 30, 
2014 2013 

(dollars in
millions) Ref. Consumer

Banking 
Commercial
Banking Other Consolidated ConsumerBanking 

Commercial
Banking Other Consolidated 

Net income (loss),
excluding
goodwill
impairment:
Net income (loss)
(GAAP) T $54 $139 ($4 ) $189 $52 $127 ($35 ) $144

Add: Goodwill
impairment, net of
income tax benefit
(GAAP)

— — — — — — — —

Net income (loss),
excluding
goodwill
impairment
(non-GAAP)

U $54 $139 ($4 ) $189 $52 $127 ($35 ) $144

Efficiency ratio:
Total revenue
(GAAP) V $758 $374 $29 $1,161 $789 $356 $8 $1,153

Noninterest
expense (GAAP) W $609 $162 $39 $810 $622 $156 $10 $788

Less: Goodwill
impairment
(GAAP)

— — — — — — — —

Noninterest
expense,
excluding
goodwill
impairment (non-
GAAP)

X $609 $162 $39 $810 $622 $156 $10 $788

Efficiency ratio
(non-GAAP) W/V 80.42 % 43.35 % NM 69.84 % 78.83 % 43.69 % NM 68.49 %

Efficiency ratio,
excluding
goodwill
impairment
(non-GAAP)

X/V 80.42 % 43.35 % NM 69.84 % 78.83 % 43.69 % NM 68.49 %

Return on average
total tangible
assets:
Average total
assets (GAAP) Y $49,012 $38,854 $40,825 $128,691 $46,169 $35,019 $36,198 $117,386

Less: Average
goodwill (GAAP) — — 6,876 6,876 — — 6,876 6,876

Less: Average
other intangibles
(GAAP)

— — 6 6 — — 9 9

Edgar Filing: CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP INC/RI - Form 10-Q

124



Add: Average
deferred tax
liabilities related
to goodwill
(GAAP)

— — 384 384 — — 325 325

Average total
tangible assets
(non-GAAP)

Z $49,012 $38,854 $34,327 $122,193 $46,169 $35,019 $29,638 $110,826

Return on average
total tangible
assets
(non-GAAP)(4)

T/Z 0.44 % 1.42 % NM 0.61 % 0.45 % 1.46 % NM 0.52 %

Return on average
total tangible
assets, excluding
goodwill
impairment
(non-GAAP)(4)

U/Z 0.44 % 1.42 % NM 0.61 % 0.45 % 1.46 % NM 0.52 %

Return on average
tangible common
equity:
Average common
equity (GAAP)(3) AA $4,685 $4,205 $10,521 $19,411 $4,403 $3,855 $11,369 $19,627

Less: Average
goodwill (GAAP) — — 6,876 6,876 — — 6,876 6,876

Less: Average
other intangibles
(GAAP)

— — 6 6 — — 9 9

Add: Average
deferred tax
liabilities related
to goodwill
(GAAP)

— — 384 384 — — 325 325

Average tangible
common equity
(non-GAAP)(3)

BB $4,685 $4,205 $4,023 $12,913 $4,403 $3,855 $4,809 $13,067

Return on average
tangible common
equity
(non-GAAP)(3)(4)

T/BB 4.57 % 13.10 % NM 5.81 % 4.69 % 13.24 % NM 4.34 %

Return on average
tangible common
equity, excluding
goodwill
impairment
(non-GAAP)(3)(4)

U/BB 4.57 % 13.10 % NM 5.81 % 4.69 % 13.24 % NM 4.34 %
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As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30,
2014 2013 

(dollars in
millions) Ref. Consumer

Banking 
Commercial
Banking Other Consolidated ConsumerBanking 

Commercial
Banking Other Consolidated 

Net income (loss),
excluding
goodwill
impairment:
Net income (loss)
(GAAP) T $130 $421 $117 $668 $192 $391 ($4,161 ) ($3,578 )

Add: Goodwill
impairment, net of
income tax benefit
(GAAP)

— — — — — — 4,080 4,080

Net income (loss),
excluding
goodwill
impairment
(non-GAAP)

U $130 $421 $117 $668 $192 $391 ($81 ) $502

Efficiency ratio:
Total revenue
(GAAP) V $2,296 $1,108 $396 $3,800 $2,423 $1,055 $54 $3,532

Noninterest
expense (GAAP) W $1,902 $472 $194 $2,568 $1,884 $471 $4,506 $6,861

Less: Goodwill
impairment
(GAAP)

— — — — — — 4,435 4,435

Noninterest
expense,
excluding
goodwill
impairment (non-
GAAP)

X $1,902 $472 $194 $2,568 $1,884 $471 $71 $2,426

Efficiency ratio
(non-GAAP) W/V 82.82 % 42.62 % NM 67.58 % 77.78 % 44.64 % NM 194.29  %

Efficiency ratio,
excluding
goodwill
impairment
(non-GAAP)

X/V 82.82 % 42.62 % NM 67.58 % 77.78 % 44.64 % NM 68.70  %

Return on average
total tangible
assets:
Average total
assets (GAAP) Y $48,398 $37,951 $40,249 $126,598 $46,546 $34,938 $39,542 $121,026

Less: Average
goodwill (GAAP) — — 6,876 6,876 — — 9,800 9,800

Less: Average
other intangibles
(GAAP)

— — 7 7 — — 10 10
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Add: Average
deferred tax
liabilities related
to goodwill
(GAAP)

— — 368 368 — — 486 486

Average total
tangible assets
(non-GAAP)

Z $48,398 $37,951 $33,734 $120,083 $46,546 $34,938 $30,218 $111,702

Return on average
total tangible
assets
(non-GAAP)(4)

T/Z 0.36 % 1.48 % NM 0.74 % 0.55 % 1.51 % NM (3.05 )%

Return on average
total tangible
assets, excluding
goodwill
impairment
(non-GAAP)(4)

U/Z 0.36 % 1.48 % NM 0.74 % 0.55 % 1.51 % NM 0.60  %

Return on average
tangible common
equity:
Average common
equity (GAAP)(3) AA $4,635 $4,120 $10,708 $19,463 $4,377 $3,870 $14,420 $22,667

Less: Average
goodwill (GAAP) — — 6,876 6,876 — — 9,800 9,800

Less: Average
other intangibles
(GAAP)

— — 7 7 — — 10 10

Add: Average
deferred tax
liabilities related
to goodwill
(GAAP)

— — 368 368 — — 486 486

Average tangible
common equity
(non-GAAP)(3)

BB $4,635 $4,120 $4,193 $12,948 $4,377 $3,870 $5,096 $13,343

Return on average
tangible common
equity
(non-GAAP)(3)(4)

T/BB 3.76 % 13.67 % NM 6.90 % 5.86 % 13.59 % NM (25.54 )%

Return on average
tangible common
equity, excluding
goodwill
impairment
(non-GAAP)(3)(4)

U/BB 3.76 % 13.67 % NM 6.90 % 5.86 % 13.59 % NM 5.03  %

(1) Ratios for the periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are presented on an annualized basis.
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(2) Restricted core capital elements include other intangibles, intangible mortgage servicing assets, and disallowed
mortgage servicing assets.

(3)
Operating segments are allocated capital on a risk-adjusted basis considering economic and regulatory capital
requirements. We approximate that regulatory capital is equivalent to a sustainable target level for common equity
Tier 1 and then allocate that approximation to the segments based on economic capital.

(4) Ratios are presented on an annualized basis.

Results of Operations-Three Months Ended September 30, 2014 Compared with Three Months Ended September 30,
2013
Highlights
For the three months ended September 30, 2014:

•net income increased $45 million to $189 million, compared to $144 million for the three months endedSeptember 30, 2013;

•

net income for the three months ended September 30, 2014 was $189 million, and included $13 million in after-tax
restructuring charges and special noninterest expense items largely related to our separation from the RBS Group and
ongoing efforts to improve processes and enhance efficiencies across the organization. Excluding the restructuring
charges and special noninterest expense items, net income increased $58 million, or 40%, to $202 million, compared
to $144 million for the same period in 2013;

•

net interest income of $820 million increased $50 million, or 6%, compared to $770 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2013, largely reflecting the benefit of lower hedging costs and growth in loans and the
investment securities portfolio. These results were partially offset by the impact of declining loan yields given the
persistent low-rate environment as well as the impact of the Chicago Divestiture;

•

net interest margin was 2.77% compared to 2.88% for the three months ended September 30, 2013, driven by the
benefit of lower pay-fixed swap costs, deposit costs, and earning asset growth, which was more than offset by
decreased yields on commercial and retail loans and increased long-term borrowing costs largely associated with
increased levels of subordinated debt, and the impact of the Chicago Divestiture;

•

noninterest income for the three months ended September 30, 2014 decreased $42 million, or 11%, to $341 million,
compared to $383 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013 as decreases in net securities gains, the
impact of the Chicago Divestiture, and lower service charges and fees, and card fees were partially offset by growth in
capital markets fees;

•

noninterest expense of $810 million increased $22 million, or 3%, compared to $788 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2013, driven by $21 million of restructuring charges and special items incurred in the three
months ended September 30, 2014, which are largely related to our separation from the RBS Group, ongoing efforts
to improve processes and enhance efficiencies across the organization, including certain regulatory and compliance
programs;

•

provision for credit losses totaled $77 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, and was down
$68 million, or 47%, from $145 million compared to the same period in 2013. Results for the three months
ended September 30, 2014 included an $11 million reserve release compared to a net reserve build of $14
million in the three months ended September 30, 2013;

•
our return on average tangible common equity ratio improved to 5.81%, from 4.34% for the three months ended
September 30, 2013. Excluding the impact of the restructuring charges and special items mentioned above, our return
on average tangible common equity for the three months ended September 30, 2014 improved to 6.22%;

•
average loans and leases of $89.7 billion increased $5.2 billion, or 6%, from $84.5 billion as of September 30,
2013, as commercial loan growth and higher residential mortgages and auto loan outstandings more than offset
a decrease in home equity loans and lines of credit;

•average interest-bearing deposits of $65.8 billion decreased $1.7 billion, or 3%, from $67.5 billion as of
September 30, 2013, driven by the effect of the June 22, 2014 sale of $3.9 billion in interest-bearing deposits
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associated with our Chicago-area retail branches;

•
capital ratios continued to be well above regulatory requirements; our total capital ratio was unchanged at 16.1%
compared to December 31, 2013, and our Tier 1 capital ratio decreased to 12.9% from 13.5% as of December 31,
2013 as a result of our plan to rebalance our capital structure;
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•
net charge-offs of $88 million declined $43 million, or 33%, from $131 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2013 and the allowance for credit losses totaled $1.3 billion as of September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013; and

• net income per average common share, basic and diluted, was $0.34 compared to $0.26 for the three months
ended September 30, 2013.

Results of Operations-Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 Compared with Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013
Highlights
For the nine months ended September 30, 2014:

•net income increased $4.2 billion to $668 million compared to a loss of $3.6 billion for the nine months endedSeptember 30, 2013;

•

net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was $668 million, and included a net $180 million after-tax
gain related to the Chicago Divestiture and $85 million after-tax in restructuring charges and special noninterest
expense items largely related to our separation from the RBS Group and ongoing efforts to improve processes and
enhance efficiencies across the organization. 2013 included an after-tax goodwill impairment charge of $4.1 billion.
Excluding the Chicago gain, restructuring charges and special items and the goodwill impairment charge, net income
increased $71 million, or 14%, to $573 million, compared to $502 million for the same period in 2013;

•

net interest income of $2.5 billion increased $182 million, or 8%, compared to $2.3 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013, largely reflecting the benefit of lower hedging costs, growth in the investment securities and loan
portfolios, and a reduction in deposit costs as we continued to reduce our reliance on higher cost certificates of deposit
and money market funds. These results were partially offset by the impact of declining loan yields given the relatively
persistent low-rate environment;

•
net interest margin was 2.84%, compared to 2.85% for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, driven by
decreased yields on commercial and retail loans and increased long-term borrowing costs largely associated with
higher levels of subordinated debt, partially offset by the benefit of lower hedging costs;

•

noninterest income for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 included a $288 million pre-tax gain related to the
Chicago Divestiture, and increased $86 million, or 7%, to $1.3 billion, compared to $1.3 billion for the nine months
ended September 30, 2013. Excluding the gain, noninterest income decreased $202 million, or 16%, as decreases in
mortgage banking fees, securities gains, net, and service charges and fees were partially offset by growth in trust and
investment services fees and capital markets fees;

•

noninterest expense of $2.6 billion decreased $4.3 billion, or 63%, compared to $6.9 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 driven by a $4.4 billion goodwill impairment charge incurred in 2013, offset by $136 million of
restructuring charges and special items incurred in 2014, which are largely related to our separation from the RBS
Group, ongoing efforts to improve processes and enhance efficiencies across the organization, including certain
regulatory and compliance programs, and special expense items related to the Chicago Divestiture;

•

provision for credit losses totaled $247 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, down $100 million, or
29%, from $347 million compared to the same period in 2013. Results for the nine months ended September 30, 2014
included a net provision build of $4 million compared with a $39 million release in the nine months ended
September 30, 2013;

•

our return on average tangible common equity ratio improved to 6.90%, from (25.54)% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013. Excluding the impact of the goodwill impairment, restructuring charges and special items
mentioned above, our return on average tangible common equity improved to 5.92% from 5.03% for the nine months
ended September 30, 2013;

•
average loans and leases of $88.0 billion increased $2.8 billion, or 3%, from $85.3 billion as of September 30, 2013,
as commercial loan growth and originations and purchases of residential mortgages and auto loans more than offset
the decrease in home equity loans and lines of credit;

•
average interest-bearing deposits of $63.0 billion decreased $5.2 billion, or 8%, from $68.2 billion as of
September 30, 2013, driven by the effect of the June 22, 2014 sale of $3.9 billion in interest-bearing deposits
associated with our Chicago-area retail branches as well as attrition of higher cost money market and term deposits;
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•
net charge-offs of $243 million declined $143 million, or 37%, from $386 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 and the allowance for credit losses totaled $1.3 billion as of September 30, 2014, essentially flat
with December 31, 2013; and

•net income (loss) per average common share, basic and diluted, was $1.19 compared to ($6.39) for the nine monthsended September 30, 2013.

Net Income (Loss)
The following table details the significant components of our net income (loss) for the periods indicated:

Three Months
Ended September
30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(dollars in millions) 2014 2013 Change Percent 2014 2013 Change Percent
Operating Data:
Net interest income $820 $770 $50 6  % $2,461 $2,279 $182 8  %
Noninterest income 341 383 (42 ) (11 ) 1,339 1,253 86 7
Total revenue 1,161 1,153 8 1 3,800 3,532 268 8
Provision for credit losses 77 145 (68 ) (47 ) 247 347 (100 ) (29 )
Noninterest expense 810 788 22 3 2,568 6,861 (4,293 ) (63 )
Income (loss) before income
tax expense (benefit) 274 220 54 25 985 (3,676 ) 4,661 127

Income tax expense (benefit) 85 76 9 12 317 (98 ) 415 423
Net income (loss) $189 $144 $45 31  % $668 ($3,578) $4,246 119  %
Net income, excluding
goodwill impairment,
restructuring charges and
special items (1)

$202 $144 $58 40  % $573 $502 $71 14  %

Return on average tangible
common equity (1) (2) 5.81 % 4.34 % 147  bps 6.90 % (25.54 %) NM

Return on average tangible
common equity, excluding
goodwill impairment,
restructuring charges and
special items (1) (2)

6.22 4.34 188  bps 5.92 5.03 89  bps

(1) This is a non-GAAP financial measure. For more information on the computation of this non-GAAP financial
measure, see “Principal Components of Operations and Key Performance Metrics Used By Management-Key
Performance Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”

(2) Ratios for the periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are presented on an annualized basis.

Net income of $189 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, included $13 million of after-tax
restructuring charges and special items related to our separation from the RBS Group and efforts to improve processes
and enhance efficiencies across the organization. Excluding the restructuring charges and special items, net income
increased $58 million, or 40%, from the three months ended September 30, 2013, as the benefit of lower provision for
credit losses and higher net interest income was partially offset by the effect of lower noninterest income and
increased noninterest expenses.
Net income totaled $668 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, including a $180 million after-tax
gain related to the Chicago Divestiture and $85 million of after-tax of restructuring charges and special items related
to our separation from the RBS Group and efforts to improve processes and enhance efficiencies across the
organization. These results increased $4.2 billion from the nine months ended September 30, 2013, which included a
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$4.1 billion after-tax goodwill impairment charge. Excluding the gain, restructuring charges and special items and
impairment charge noted above, net income increased $71 million, or 14%, from the nine months ended
September 30, 2013, as the benefit of lower provision for credit losses and higher net interest income was partially
offset by the effect of lower noninterest income and increased noninterest expense.

74
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Net Interest Income
The following tables show the major components of net interest income and net interest margin:

Three Months Ended September 30, Change
2014 2013

(dollars in millions) Average
Balances

Income/
Expense

Yields/
Rates

Average
Balances

Income/
Expense

Yields/
Rates

Average
Balances

Yields/
Rates

Assets
Interest-bearing cash and due
from banks and deposits in
banks

$2,685 $2 0.23 % $1,677 $2 0.36 % $1,008 (13) bps

Taxable investment securities 24,648 155 2.51 19,300 120 2.50 5,348 1
Non-taxable investment
securities 10 — 2.59 11 — 2.60 (1 ) (1)

Total investment securities 24,658 155 2.51 19,311 120 2.50 5,347 1
Commercial 30,186 223 2.89 28,522 233 3.20 1,664 (31)
Commercial real estate 7,216 46 2.46 6,435 43 2.62 781 (16)
Leases 3,789 25 2.68 3,505 26 3.01 284 (33)
Total commercial 41,191 294 2.80 38,462 302 3.08 2,729 (28)
Home equity lines of credit 16,163 117 2.87 16,961 121 2.83 (798 ) 4
Residential mortgage 11,001 108 3.92 8,892 87 3.91 2,109 1
Home equity loans 5,060 72 5.65 6,102 87 5.64 (1,042 ) 1
Automobile 11,438 74 2.57 8,817 57 2.56 2,621 1
Student and other retail 3,136 47 5.90 3,586 50 5.53 (450 ) 37
Credit cards 1,661 42 9.99 1,670 44 10.55 (9 ) (56)
Total retail 48,459 460 3.78 46,028 446 3.84 2,431 (6)
Total loans and leases 89,650 754 3.33 84,490 748 3.50 5,160 (17)
Loans held for sale 176 2 3.46 379 3 3.23 (203 ) 23
Other loans held for sale 27 — 5.44 — — — 27 NM
Interest-earning assets 117,196 913 3.08 105,857 873 3.27 11,339 (19)
Allowance for loan and lease
losses (1,202 ) (1,205 ) 3

Goodwill 6,876 6,876 —
Other noninterest-earning
assets 5,821 5,858 (37 )

Total noninterest-earning
assets 11,495 11,529 (34 )

Total assets $128,691 $117,386 $11,305
Liabilities and Stockholders'
Equity
Checking with interest $15,155 $4 0.09 % $13,997 $2 0.06 % $1,158 3 bps
Money market and savings 40,096 21 0.21 42,237 24 0.22 (2,141 ) (1)
Term deposits 10,596 16 0.61 11,311 32 1.13 (715 ) (52)
Total interest-bearing deposits 65,847 41 0.25 67,545 58 0.34 (1,698 ) (9)
Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under
agreements to repurchase(1)

6,305
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